NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE
S

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The principal
place of business of the Group is located at Unit 2203, 22/F,
Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in notes 44 and 18 respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Management of the Company has been unable to gain access
to the books and records of its subsidiary, #7115 i 2 i 59
EAHR AT ("HZHY") since July 2005 due to the Iack of co-
operation from management of HZHY. Previously, the
Company received management accounts of HZHY on a
monthly basis, the last set of which was for the eleven months
ended 28th February, 2005. Details of the above were set
out in the announcement to the shareholders of the Company
dated 13th July, 2005.

Accordingly, the consolidated income statement of the
Company for the current year has not incorporated the results
of HZHY for the year ended 31st March, 2006 and the
consolidated balance sheet of the Company as at 31st March,
2006 has only incorporated the balance sheet of HZHY up to
28th February, 2005.

—REHR

ARARDRBREFMRILZERRE
BAR EERNETEMARXZIMERA
Al (TBERZpT)) Eme

KARRKEERAG FMBHEERE
& ¥ 40 2h 5 B AL 7 Clarendon House,
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
K 2B R R 5 4T 18 255-257 5 5 M E
1522182203 - H X EMB AR RBE R
A2 FEEB D RITIE N ET44%218 o

MBERREREE

RAAREREBE-_ZTRFLAUKR—
HEEADNSEWNBARMMNEERERH
BERAR ([MMEE]) 2EMERL
B REAABREESMMNEBEEREEZS
- AE ARBIZBAEENMMNEEZE
BEE &% MWEEAEE-_ZTTRHF
—AZt+N\BLEt+—ERA-EB Ltz
EHERNAQARAPA-_TTHF LA+
—HERERZ A Mo

At AR RARFE 2 4R
AMMEBEEHE=TFT,
HIEFEZ¥%&" ﬁﬁzm
FZA=+—RAZEKEE
ﬁMMIHEL@%zi:%
NBZzEEARBER-

ok

=R &

oW+
>k

oo

(T I
[
+ W

o Ry 1

F
&
BEER
il

xil \“ﬂ* B

4)'1%

—zzxgau bezgwmEnswaa 47 [N



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁé@ﬁﬁi{
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The directors are unable to satisfy themselves that the
following amounts included in the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31st March, 2005 and 31st March, 2006 of the Group
were free from material misstatement.

- Property, plant and equipment of HK$64,460,000;
—  Bank balances and cash of HK$7,217,000;

- Trade and other receivables of HK$4,303,000;

—  Trade and other payables of HK$58,545,000;

—  Deferred tax liability with nil amount;

- Minority interests of HK$10,241,000.

The directors were also unable to satisfy themselves as to the
validity and completeness of the amounts attributable to HZHY
included in the notes to the financial statements, including
but not limited to the disclosure of commitments, pledge of
assets and contingent liabilities.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties and certain financial assets and financial liabilities,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), which
also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 6.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2006

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The adoption of new or revised HKFRS

From 1st April, 2005, the Group adopted the new/revised
standards and interpretations of HKFRS below, which are
relevant to its operations. The 2005 comparatives have been
amended as required, in accordance with the relevant

requirements.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 18 Revenue

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and
Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings Per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

HKAS 39 Transition and Initial Recognition of

Amendment Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
HKAS 40 Investment Property

HK(SIC) — Int 12

HK(SIC) — Int 15

HK(SIC) - Int 21

Scope of HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities

Operating Leases — Incentives

Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued
Non-Depreciated Assets

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payments
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁé@ﬁﬁi{
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL 2. MBRBREREE (£
STATEMENTS (Continued)
The impact of adopting the HKFRS is summarised as follows: KM BEAVBREER 2 ZERRAOT
(a) HKAS 1 (a) BEEESFTEREI

(b)

HKAS 1 affects certain presentation in these financial
statements, including the following:

e minority interests are now presented in the
consolidated income statement and within the equity
in the consolidated balance sheet separately from
results/equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company;

e taxes of associates attributable to the Group, which
were previously included in tax charge in the
consolidated income statement, are now included
in the Group’'s share of profits less losses of
associates; and

e the Group is no longer permitted to not disclose
comparative information for movements in property,
plant and equipment.

HKAS 17

In prior years, the leasehold land and land use rights
were accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment. The adoption of revised
HKAS 17 has resulted in a change in the accounting
policy relating to the reclassification of leasehold land
and land use rights from property, plant and equipment
to operating leases. In accordance with the provisions of
HKAS 17, a lease of land and building should be split
into a lease of land and a lease of building in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in
the land element and the building element of the lease
at the inception of the lease. The up-front prepayments
made for the leasehold land and land use rights are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease or when there is impairment,
the impairment is expensed in the income statement. In
case, the two elements cannot be allocated reliably, the
entire lease is classified as a finance lease and carried at

(b)
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cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated ZEeBEEEAN RIS RREABR
impairment losses. This change in accounting policy does 2T REFRG ZEHEBRTZ

not have effect to prior periods because the amount of
land and buildings cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements at the inception date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2006

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

HKAS 24

HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related parties
and some other related party disclosures.

HKAS 28

In prior years, when the Group’s share of losses exceeded
its interest in the associates, the Group’s interest was
reported at nil and recognition of further losses was
discontinued.

With effect from 1st April, 2005,
with HKAS 28, recognition of the share of associate’s

in order to comply

losses under equity method is broadened by including
other long-term non-equity interests, which in substance
form part of the net investment of an associate.

The adoption of HKAS 28 has no effect on the opening
balance of accumulated losses as of 1st April, 2005 and
1st April,
associates are set out in note 4 to the financial

2004. Details of the accounting policy on

statements.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39

The adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 has resulted in a
change in the accounting policy for recognition,
measurement, derecognition and disclosure of financial
instruments.

Until 31st March 2005 investments of the Group were
classified into investment securities and/or other
investments, which were stated in the balance sheet at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses and at fair
value, respectively, and any impairment losses on
investment securities and changes in fair value of other
investments were recognised in the income statement in

the period in which they arise.

2.

PR ETE Y
HE-—BEAFE=A=+-BLFHE
___________________________________________________________________

()

(d)

(e)

MBBEREREE (8)

BREEAF 245

BB U LR 4R Y LY WA
BATRETEEBEALRES
R E-

BEREEAF28H
EFE EAKEMEBERR

ﬁﬁ.g Al NEBEZ R
JIRTI R IFERE—FTBE-

Mo o 3
_%rfm

M-EERAMA-AE AHAE
R EHERIE 285 IRIB AR
BEATZBAMEERER LK
IR A SR AR L)
8 A RREFE L — 3 -

RMBE A LR F 28R T T
AENA-AR-ETMEMNA—
A2 RSB & Y MR Y
o NG E D T T BH BRI
BB SRR T4 -

EARASERENREREBESTE
Al 5539455

RMERB G ERE2R3IREH
TRMTAZBER FE BUBERR
BEZEHBRLRE-

EEZE-TTRF=A=+—H &%
BrREDRIEREAZAFRRHEAM
WE DR A A ER AR EESE
RARFEIIENREEABR ME
ﬂ S HFREBEZBREBEREREMEE

AP EEHOREFHEZ KE R
RIS

CERTREFR LEBEMBENERAF 51



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7 3R R MY &
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZAF=-ZA=+—HILFE
S

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL 2. BB REREE (£

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(e) HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 (Continued) (e) BERAETEAFENEREBEHE

In accordance with the provisions of HKAS 39, the
investments have been classified into available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the investments were held. As a result of the
adoption of HKAS 39, all the investments are now stated
at fair value in the balance sheet, except for certain
available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, when they are
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
In addition, all the investments as at 31st March, 2005
that should be measured at fair value on adoption of
HKAS 39 should be remeasured at 1st April, 2005 and
any adjustment of the previous carrying amount should
be recognised as an adjustment of the balance of
accumulated losses at 1st April, 2005.

The effect of the changes in accounting policies on these
financial statements as a result of the adoption of HKAS
32 and HKAS 39 is summarised as follows:

All investments of the Group and the Company as at
31st March, 2005 were redesignated into available-for-
sale financial assets or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss on 1st April, 2005. The aggregate
differences between the respective carrying value of each
investment as at 31st March, 2005 and the respective
fair value at 1st April, 2005 is insignificant and hence,
no adjustment has been made against the accumulated
losses at 1st April, 2005.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3 EY
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZF=-A=+—HLFE
T mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm———,

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL 2. IR REREE (&)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(e) HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 (Continued) (e) BB EAENEREBDHE

In accordance with the provisions of HKAS 32, convertible
notes issued, that are convertible into a fixed number of
shares of the Company, are split into their liability and
equity components at initial recognition. The liability
component is subsequently carried at amortised cost
(including transaction costs) using the effective interest
rate method. The equity component is recognised in the
convertible note reserve until the note is either converted
(in which case it is transferred to share premium) or the
note or bond is redeemed (in which case it is released
directly to accumulated losses). Details of the new
accounting policies are set out in note 4.

The adoption of HKAS 32 resulted in:
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2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

—2®AE —=EnF

FET FET

Increase in accumulated losses RETBEE M 317 317
Increase in share premium 1% 17 5 (B 42 hn 317 317
Increase in interest expenses SR SZIE N 594 317

Increase in basic loss per share

There was no impact on opening accumulated losses at
1st April, 2005 for the adoption of HKAS 32.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁé@ﬁﬁi{
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL 2. BB REREE (£

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(f) HKAS 40 (f) BFBEHEREA0R
The adoption of revised HKAS 40 has resulted in a change KNI BB GRERF407E

in the accounting policy of which the changes in fair
values are recorded in the income statement as part of
other income. In prior years, the increases in fair value
were credited to the investment properties revaluation
reserve. Decreases in fair value were first set off against
increases on earlier valuations on a portfolio basis and
thereafter expensed in the income statement. However,
since the Group has continued to adopt the fair value
model, there is no requirement for the Group to restate
the comparative information, any adjustment should be
made to the accumulated losses as at 1st April, 2005,
including the reclassification of any amount held in
revaluation surplus for investment properties.

Upon adoption of HKAS 40 as from 1st April, 2005:

All changes in the fair value of investment properties are
recognised directly in the income statement in accordance
with the fair value model in HKAS 40.

These changes in accounting policy have been adopted
prospectively by decreasing the opening balance of
accumulated losses as of 1st April, 2005 by HK$ 1,385,000
to include all the Group’s previous investment properties
revaluation reserve.

This new policy has no significant effect on the Group’s
losses before taxation for the years ended 31st March,
2006 and 2005.

I 524 PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2006

HERRNRESY REVEZA
FEEDETHERNBER (EREM
WAZ =8 -REF RFEZM
CELRREMEEGLHEB - A FE
BRIERGRESEERERMG
BERMEEEHE SENKEAX
HoERARERERAQFER
X ARAEEIFTEEI LK
BATAERIA—ZTETRAFMA —
BZRFEE BRERRENES
EEEEN SR EMNEE-

RN-ZZEZTRAFOA —HEMNETED
=+ I 5 4055 1%

BREWMERFEN—
BAE G ERIE 4058
BRWERPHER-

P B THR &
RNEEE

REBRBE S HREZE EFA
ERTAEE 2 REMESEHRHE
41,385,000 LR T AF I
A—BZ R EEBRYIHENRE-

ZEFTBRREAEBEBEE_TTAN
FR-_ZETRAF=A=+—HLF
EzBBABERYBERKEATE-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3 EY
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZF=-A=+—HLFE
T mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm———,

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL 2. IR REREE (&)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(g) HK(SIC) - Int 21 () EEREBZES -REENR

(h)

The adoption of revised HK(SIC) — Int 21 has resulted in
a change in the accounting policy relating to the
measurement of deferred tax liabilities arising from the
revaluation of investment properties. Such deferred tax
liabilities are measured on the basis of tax consequences
that would follow from recovery of the carrying amount
of that asset through use. In prior years, the carrying
amount of that asset was expected to be recovered
through sale. However, the adoption of revised HK(SIC)
—Int 21 has no material financial impact on the Group'’s
results and net assets for the current or prior years.

HKFRS 2

The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy for share-based payments. In prior
years, no amounts were recognised when employees
(which term includes directors) were granted share
options over shares in the Company. If the employees
chose to exercise the options, the nominal amount of
share capital and share premium were credited only to
the extent of the option’s exercise price receivable.

With effect from 1st April, 2005, in order to comply
with HKFRS 2, the Group recognises the fair value of
such share options as an expense in the income
statement, or as an asset, if the cost qualifies for
recognition as an asset under the Group’s accounting
policies. A corresponding increase is recognised in a
capital reserve within equity.

Where the employees are required to meet vesting
conditions before they become entitled to the options,
the Group recognises the fair value of the options granted
over the vesting period. Otherwise, the Group recognises
the fair value in the period in which the options are
granted.

(h)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7 3R R MY &
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZAF=-ZA=+—HILFE
S

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL 2. BB REREE (£

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(h) HKFRS 2 (Continued) (h) EBHMBHREERE 258 (&)

(i)

If an employee chooses to exercise options, the related
capital reserve is transferred to share capital and share
premium, together with the exercise price. If the options
lapse unexercised the related capital reserve is transferred
directly to accumulated losses.

The Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions set out in paragraph 53 of HKFRS 2. In relation
to share options granted on or before 7th November,
2002 and share options granted after 7th November,
2002 but which had vested before 1st April, 2005, the
Group does not recognise and expense those share
options.

No adjustments to the opening balances as at 1st April
2004 and 1st April 2005 are required as all the share
options granted were vested before 1st April, 2005.

Other Standards

The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23,
27, 33, 36, 37, 38 and HK(SIC) — Ints 12 and 15 and
HKFRS 3 and 5 had no material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies and did not result in any changes to
the amounts or disclosures in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE
S

3. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 3. FRAEEMERERZERAYK
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE mEZEH
FOR THE YEAR

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new BAEGFTAN A EE MM A TR T B A
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective as Sk BEIM AR ERZERT LA RZE
of the date of these financial statements: i

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

N EE
ERE¥2 el
Bt 4
Amendments, as a consequence of the Hong Kong Companies
(Amendment) Ordinance 2005, to:
— HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” 1st January 2006
— HKAS 27 "Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” 1st January 2006
— HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” 1st January 2006
ER_EZ ﬂi%&% A (BFT) &P T 51 % BIE L BT
—BAEGHERER (M BEHRE 22577 ] —ZEERE—-—H—H
—é%%ﬁ/ﬁ-ﬂﬂ%zmiF%ﬁa&?%ﬁé!ﬂ%iﬁﬁj —ZTERE—HF—H
—BEMBHRELERFEIREBE 0 —TETZRFE—-HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”:
— The fair value option 1st January 2006
— Financial guarantee contracts 1st January 2006
— Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions 1st January 2006
EAEREEHENFEIR (eI A ERENE |-
—’“ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé —EERF-HA—H
—UBEREHD —ZTERF-A—H
—BAEERNARBARGZEERENAEHERE —_EERF—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 19 “Actuarial gains and losses, group plans and disclosures” 1st January 2006
ARG ENF 19 [HKEES SEGFEIRKE] —ZEERE-A—H
Amendments to HKAS 21 “Net investment in a foreign operation” 1st January 2006
EATERGHERE215 (BFT) [MIMEEBK 2 REFHE] —ZEERE-A—H
HKFRS-Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” 1st January 2006
ERVBREEN -ZBFIG(BEE - HBEASAEBEHEE] —ZTERE-A—H
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” 1st January 2007
BEAVBHREEAETR[2F T HE HE] T+ —-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements:
Capital Disclosures” 1st January 2007
EAEREEALENFE IR MBHRRZ2Z0 T ERKE —ET+F—-HA—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7 3R R MY &
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZAF=-ZA=+—HILFE
S

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January, 2007. The revised standard
will affect the disclosures about qualitative information about
the Group’s objective, policies and processes for managing
capital; quantitative data about what the Company regards
as capital; and compliance with any capital requirements and
the consequences of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 will replace HKAS 32 and has modified the disclosure
requirements of HKAS 32 relating to financial instruments.
This HKFRS shall be applied for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January, 2007.

In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 39 regarding
financial guarantee contracts, financial guarantee contracts
are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently
measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 and (ii) the amount initially
recognised, less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18.

The HKAS 19 Amendment and HKAS 39 Amendment
regarding cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup
transactions do not apply to the activities of the Group.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the adoption
of the other pronouncements listed above will not have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements in the
period of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3 EY
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZF=-A=+—HLFE
T mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm———,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below:

4.

TEEHBEREE

IR TEGTBERINERN TX:

Basis of consolidation RERE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial RAEVBBREREEARAREWB QA
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to BEEBE="A=T—HilzWHK@m*k-

31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls the composition of the board of
directors, controls more than half the voting power or holds
more than half of the issued share capital.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interests. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

RAFEARMBKBEXHENBARZE
BEIARERAERE IO R HKEZ
EMEHEARFEEREZEMAEH
(BFERBRAME)

ol N

MEARAARNRREXAHKEFESE
EFEMANENE —F U LREENR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁé@ﬁﬁi{
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

4.

TEEHBEME (&)

MEAE (&)

BARZENRZ S 4 ﬁ%&x%Zﬂi“
fﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂ’]%ff%ﬁ BﬂféFEw&%?ﬂ%m
RREBEELRRE T ] ﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
JTHZ‘%H%]OMT%"ﬁZ@EJrBZ”EEﬁ%?

BN TEERT EREAEBARAZ
BR— e

DER RN AR R A A S I
BARIMEEREEFE.

EARRREERBRA HHBEARNK
B R A ENRER R EBBERE

The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on AR ADRNNBARESE ZEWR
the basis of dividends received and receivable. FE AR BB
Associates B & )\ T

Associates are all entities, not being a subsidiary or a jointly
controlled entity, over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for by the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.
The Group’s investments in associates include goodwill (net

of any accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition results is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of

the associate.

I 60 PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2006

BERRBEASEHEAEATEMIE
BAEENEESRENB AR ARE
HEE B RIS 20%250% KR EE2
FREZAMAEEB -NBERRZRED
EESFHEARL VP IEKAEER
$’§I7EA i R R 2R E B R R I
RzEE (MREFNRGRESSE) -

AEBDEEBELRKBREE DR
WK PR MED G2 A RKER
ZHERBES N FERETER - WERZR
ERPURECRAEERAB - EANEE
DEBERTEREENIEBEGHZ
AﬂZﬁEﬁﬁ(@%Eﬁ/ﬁ\m%ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬂ
B) B AEBENBRBE T ZBE K
FAKERBE QA AZERBRIMAR
Ig o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE
S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Income from properties developed for sale is recognised when
the sale agreement is unconditional or when the relevant
occupation permit is issued by the relevant authority,
whichever is later.

Toll revenue is recognised on a receipt basis.

Sales of other financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised on a trade-date basis.

Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

When the renovation services are provided and the outcome
of the renovation project can be estimated reliably, renovation
service income is recognised on the percentage of completion
method measured by reference to the value of work carried
out during the year. When the outcome of a renovation project
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to
the extent of the project costs incurred that it is probable will
be recoverable.

Sales of building materials are recognised when they are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loans is recognised either as cash is collected or
on a cost-recovery basis as conditions warrant.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established prior
to the balance sheet date.

TEEHBEME (&)

WA ZR’R

ERRMVEBATDREEHZK S E
1Iﬂ¢&‘ﬁf‘ﬁ”‘%?“t|jﬁfﬁf£ﬁﬁufF—IZ?T
& B HIHERR -

B B WA T A W R B RE SR

HERAFEFABRGSZEMSREE
TR 5 AR

HEWATREBEOPRNINE RLE

e

MEERE DR AREEB 24
WA S BRTERBALE 2ZF
WNETETT TR EE ﬁ&?&%%fl%)ﬂﬁﬁzuﬁl
A fHEERE Z & REAEHmER
E‘J@Tﬁz—fﬁzﬂﬂllﬂzlﬁﬁﬁ EZ$E§§?£\°

MEREEMBRBGRATIRENERE
EREZEER-

S AR BB BRI BOK iR i ] b ) &
RERER - fl — AU RIRHRRBE A&
H%EEETE?@ZEETEIHZJ?*QB’X
MEZEFRRKFTRRASREMKEZ
AT E & R - 30 M AR AR B QEEET’EE?FU SR
A REERZFERARKER £ H UK
@EXZIK%Z%\ SR T LARERR o

BREZBRBBATIR A EBEWERKIEZ
BNERAE BB RER

“EERFFER LERMBELERAT 61



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7 3R R MY &
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZAF=-ZA=+—HILFE
S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
companies in the consolidated Group, is classified as
investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and accounted
for as investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted
for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets
or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are
performed in accordance with the guidance issued by the
international Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations
are reviewed annually by external valuers. Investment property
that is being redeveloped for continuing use as investment
property, or for which the market has become less active,
continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE
S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash
outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.
Some of those outflows are recognised as a liability, including
finance lease liabilities in respect of land classified as
investment property, others, including contingent rent
payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes. Property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property is classified as property,
plant and equipment and stated at cost until construction or
development is complete, at which time it is reclassified and
subsequently accounted for as investment property.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment under
HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁé@ﬁﬁi{
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposal. The gain or loss arising from the retirement or
disposal of investment property, calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the investment property, is recognised in the income
statement in the period of the retirement or disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of toll highway is calculated to write off their
costs, commencing from the date of commencement of
commercial operation of the toll highway, based on the ratio
of actual traffic volume compared to the total expected traffic
volume over the remaining period estimated by management
or by reference to traffic projection reports prepared by
independent traffic consultants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3 EY
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZF=-A=+—HLFE
T mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm———,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off the
cost of other property, plant and equipment to their residual
values (if there are any) over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, at the following rates per

4.

TEEHBEME (&)

ME-BERZE (&)

HMYE -BMERREBZITEREHIZ
HAFH A AFHAE NEREMBEX
AERRE (WME) ARABZEFXRMT:

annum:

Leasehold land Over the term of the lease THE T 12 18 %9 B

Leasehold buildings 2% to 4% or over the term of HEREF 2% ZE 4%k IE T 4
the lease, if shorter FH (MARRE)

Leasehold improvements 10% to 15% or over the term HEMERE 10% 2 15% 3% 1% 78 47
of the lease, if shorter FH (MARE)

Others 10% to 30% Hity 10%%Z30%

The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate at each balance sheet
date. An item of fixed asset is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss on
derecognition of the asset, calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item, is included in the income statement in the period
the item is derecognised.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁé@ﬁﬁi{
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TEESTHERE &)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments BE

From 1st April, 2004 to 31st March, 2005: H-_EZNFOA—RE_FTTAF=
A=+—H:

The Group classified its investments in securities, other than AEEBEFHFKRE (MBARTRBER

subsidiaries, associates, as investment securities and other AN BEAREESFREMESE-

investments.
(a) REFF

(a) Investment securities

BERBHFRRNENR EARERE
1858~

Investment securities are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

ERHREZEAMEENE—EHEHA
MARE AFHEAFEREE MK
EEREEE-HERFEBEEEE
EBEz MK AZEREZEEER
HUREE QP E REBEERRZR
FRHIE B 32 o fin B 8 EOMUR S EE 2
ERAREHTBEE MAAERR
ERMERZBEAREHERAE
R 2 8 R %5 & - B 5% TRORL (B 5 18

The carrying amounts of individual investments are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether
the fair values have declined below the carrying amounts.
When a decline other than temporary has occurred, the
carrying amounts of such investments will be reduced to
its fair value. The impairment loss is recognised as an
expense in the profit and loss account. This impairment
loss is written back to profit and loss when the
circumstances and events that led to the write-downs or

=825 EE -
write-offs cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence SES 3
that the new circumstances and events will persist for
the foreseeable future.
(b) EttRE

(b) Other investments

HiRE DR AT EINR -EEEG
B EMREZAVEZSMEL
ZARBRAEFEHERERER
HEEBREZAMKEBERELE
PIEFREENECEZE YRE
HER AW E R

Other investments were carried at fair value. At each
balance sheet date, the net unrealised gains or losses
arising from the changes in fair value of other investments
were recognised in the income statement. Profits or losses
on disposal of other investments, representing the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amounts, were recognised in the income
statement as they arose.

H-FTTRFEMA—HiE:
AEERERED RATERN 2L

categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or FEAARGZEREE BRRE

loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial WEERATHESMAE-DRRT
BAKREZBENME-BEERYIF

BRABATERES R IXREER
SHHBMBEHFEZYE-

From 1st April, 2005 onwards:
The Group classifies its investments in the following

assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial
recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3 EY
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZF=-A=+—HLFE
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading, and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated
by management. Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets if they are
either held for trading or are expected to be realised
within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivable. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These are classified
as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included
in trade and other receivables in the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.

4.
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(e)

BAFPEFAABRZZEHEE

SR AT D AR ELE R 2 B =5
EEBEMRVICHEERAFETA
BRzeMEE-MAYEBHSRE
ETERRTEEHALE AR
EEERTE B D RULER-ITE
TATEREDABIEEE HKIETE
AE IR R E R G5 F AR
BEARKIFEERS HFEHNEE
REFTH T —EARER READH
MBEE-

BEMREKKRE

ERFEWERERA BT LA EE
NREE ARTEEERMS LT
MENTESMEE WEEEEAE
BERRARBEARHKESE SRR
B mEAEEEZEREKNER
TEL-HFHBEHARDEELZ
N EREERBEREERES =
ARG ENHNIER S D RIER
PEE-ERRERREBEFAEEA
BRZENES R EMKIE.

THESHEE

AHESRMEERIITEER  BE
TR RIS A B R ] A
BRl-BRIFEEE N EE B
T_EARLERRKRE BRIFTH
ETRMEERTAERBDEER-

—zzxasy rezwEwsRas 67 (N



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁé@ﬁﬁi{
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-
date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Investments are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ category are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in equity. When securities classified as available-
for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments are included in the income statement as gains or
losses from investment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value
by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and
option pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific
circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3 EY
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZF=-A=+—HLFE
T mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm———,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered in determining whether the securities are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in the income statement — is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the income statement.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁi’%m%
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the acquisition cost, architect’s
fees and other direct costs attributable to such properties.

Other inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Convertible notes

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible note is
determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible note. This amount is recorded as a liability
on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or maturity of the notes. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option. This is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity.

Convertible notes are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Convertible notes which are due before balance sheet date
are reclassified as current liabilities included in other payables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE
S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Operating lease (both as the lessee or the lessor)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non current assets and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement in a straight line basis over the lease period.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on exchange
are included in net profit or loss for the period.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity
and transferred to the Group’'s exchange reserve. Such
translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses
in the period in which the operation is disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7 3R R MY &
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZAF=-ZA=+—HILFE
S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement or in equity if it relates
to items that are recognised in the same or a different period,
directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

B 72 PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2006

TEEHBEME (&)

Frig®i

PSR R RE A R REER IR - AT
BHAAERABRREIBAERZA ER
BEEHRBAERRKTRHAEANEZER
AREm R A

EERBILIERBABLS REERAEBEN
AP EEEEERAE PR RREES LR
ENEZRFELZBCEG - A WELTAH
BRIDENGHER —EIERHEHOHRL
ZTNEESREMES MAEETRS
R B B SR SERBOE N KR A
AT EEEHBRBON ERET IR
REEERBEREERMERMAEL
i BRREEEEMEREEER
HELEFAEHEEBTE-

ERERAEEDINAIELREREER
A $5 2R 20 & SR 751t M) B R R0 o

RIERIB A ETIRNE AR B E R A
AAZEHER 2 REMELERFEZE
REG EEAKEAEFRERERER
ZEBREREZRAANERA KRS
G EE 2B IR N



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3 EY
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZF=-A=+—HLFE
T mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm———,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are charged to the income
statement by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by
the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to estimated
total costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
shown as an amount due from customers for contract work.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as an amount due to customers for
contract work. Amounts received before the related work is
performed are included in the balance sheet, as a liability, as
advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but
not yet paid by the customer are included in the balance
sheet under trade and other receivables.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes are charged as an expenses as they fall due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within bank
and other borrowings in current liabilities on the balance
sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁé@ﬁﬁi{
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or
exercise significant influence over the party in making financial
and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group
and the party are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals (being
members of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or other
entities and include entities which are under the significant
influence of related parties of the Group where those parties
are individuals, and post-employment benefit plans which are
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and price risk), credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow interest-rate risk. The Group’s risk
management objectives and policies mainly focus on
minimizing the potential adverse effects of these risks on the
Group by closely monitoring the individual exposure as follows:

(a) Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to
adverse movements in foreign exchange rates
relating to investments denominated in foreign
currencies. The Group's assets and liabilities are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars. When
seeking to optimise the returns on its funds available
for investment, the Group has certain investments
in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3 EY
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZF=-A=+—HLFE
T mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm———,

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 5. BRREMEEEERBE (8)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
BHERABREE (&)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THEER(E)

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because investments held by the Group are classified
on the consolidated balance sheet either as available-
for-sale financial assets or as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. As the Group’s policy is
only to invest on such investments by its surplus
funds, the exposure may not have significant impact
on the Group’s financial position. The Group is not
exposed to commodity price risk.

(b) Credit risk

(c)

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made and services are provided to customers
with an appropriate credit history. The customer with
sound payment history would accumulate a higher credit
limit.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines available and
sufficient bank deposits to meet short term cash
requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2006

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank and other
borrowings and convertible notes. Borrowings obtained
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. The Group’s borrowings are based on Prime
interest rates. Details of the Group’s borrowings are set
out in note 27. Bank deposits are primarily short term in
nature. In order to manage the cash flow interest rate
risk, the Group will repay the corresponding borrowing
when it has surplus funds.

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(i) Estimate of fair value of unlisted securities

Certain unlisted securities included in available-for-
sale financial assets are stated at cost at the balance
sheet date as the Group determines the fair value
of such assets closely approximates to the cost. For
the unlisted securities valued at fair value, the Group
uses the discounted cashflows valuation method and
makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date for
the determination of the fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3 EY
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZF=-A=+—HLFE
T mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm———,

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 6. BREFEFTRARK &)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions BREESHEFREE (&)
(Continued)

(a)

(ii) Impairment losses on trade and other (i) EWEZRAEMAEE

receivables

The Group assesses impairment losses on trade and
other receivables based upon evaluation of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables at
each balance sheet date. The estimates are based
on the ageing of the trade and other receivables
and the historical write-off experience, net of
recoveries. If the financial condition of the debtors
were to deteriorate, additional impairment may be
required.

(iii) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tested for
impairment if there is any indication that the carrying
value of these assets may not be recoverable and
the assets are subject to an impairment loss. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the relevant
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate is
used in order to calculate the present value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7 3R R MY &
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZAF=-ZA=+—HILFE
S

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 6. BEETHTRAE &)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (a) BARESHEFREBR (&)
(Continued)
(iv) REYELFEZEE
(iv) Estimate of fair value of investment properties
AFEZzHEEBREARERY

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in REAME LR ERT IS 2 &
an active market for similar lease and other B M=z L A EER N&E
contracts. In the absence of such information, the EZEeBEATEMTHEETE
Group determines the amount within a range of BB -EIELEHER K&
reasonable fair value estimates. In making its EZEZ7mER HPpE:

judgement, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties (i) RS Rk B (3%
of different nature, condition or location (or XTRABLHHEME LR
subject to different lease or other contracts), R)MELERHTERENIS 2
adjusted to reflect those differences. EHER (ARSHEERKE

) -

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less active (iy EREEBB M SME
markets, with adjustments to reflect any HEEYE SO BER (A
changes in economic conditions since the date ZEEBAEEKNZERAN
of the transactions that occurred at those prices. BGOSR 2 A A

e T
(b) Critical judgements in applying the entity’s (b) FEAERBK MR

accounting policies

Distinction between investment properties and REYEHEGHYEZES
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as REEBEBTEEYMERDFEIE
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group KEMENER -EEL A @A
considers whether the property generates cash flows B ANEBBZERZVMERGENR
largely independently of the other assets held by an rEMBEMEEXETRHERS
entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows ME-XTXBRVEMREHZIRER
that are attributable not only to property but also to ENMEREMERS TRBERAE
other assets used in the production or supply process. ESHEREMEACEMEE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2006

7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Business segments

For management purpose, the Group is currently organised
into five major operating divisions — securities trading and
investment, trading of building materials and renovation
services, property development and sales, operations of toll

highway and property rental.

These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its

primary segment information.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, contribution to operating
results and segment assets and liabilities by business segments

is presented as follows:

B 7% 3R R M AL
HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE

7. DEEH
ES T8
RERME ARERKHAAMELRY
BB -BLEBERRE BEMNBES

&S ﬂ“ﬂlﬁn MEBRRHEE REDQRE
LEMDEME-

AEERZEHBIIEREZNDEEH -

UT2INEEHIRAIMZAKTEER
B REXBEBR D BRBEERAE:

2006 —EERE
Trading of
Securities building
trading  materials and Property Operation
and renovation  development of toll Property
investment services and sales highway rental Unallocated  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B5EE  REANES HEBE hE AR
REE  REBEE R#E g8 pyag AR g4
Y T Ta7 TE7 TE7% Fa7% TE7
INCOME STATEMENT e E
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BEZ-ZEXF
31ST MARCH, 2006 ZA=+-HBLEE
REVENUE U &
External sales HOMEE 23,543 9,667 22 - M - 33273
Segment results NEEE 1,310 (3,373)  (1,853) - (43) - (3,959)
Unallocated other ROMEMEE
operating income A 2,023
Unallocated corporate AABER
expenses % (8,624)
Loss from operations HEBE (10,560)
Finance costs BERA (9,561)
Loss on disposal of HERB QA
subsidiaries B (2,913)
Impairment losses on amount &I B & A A1 FE 2
due from an associate BEEE (3,671)
Share of profits less losses of ~ JE{f & A 7]
associates St F R B 18 (447)
Loss before taxation BREAIE 1B (27,152)
Taxation 18 _
Loss before minority interests Kt D EUR R A1 B 18 (27,152)
Minority interests DEREER 714
Loss for the year AEFEIE (26,438)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7 3R R MY &
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S

7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2EER (#)

Business segments (Continued)

X%o® (&)

2006 —EEXRF
Trading of
Securities building
trading  materials and Property Operation
and  renovation development of toll Property
investment services and sales highway rental  Unallocated  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEE  REHHES NERE HEAH
RRE  REEEE Rk g nEAR 558 54
TR TR TR TR T Fix TR
BALANCE SHEET BEREXR
AT 31ST MARCH, RZBBAE
2006 =ZA=Z+-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 115,228 4,872 39,118 75,979 15,488 - 250,685
Interests in associates REE AR 2R - - - - 2,040 - 2,040
Unallocated corporate assets &2 E A A& E 139,254
Consolidated total assets GAEEELE 391,979
LIABILITIES 8
Segment liabilities AHEEE 15 2,696 11,986 58,545 6 - 73,248
Unallocated corporate APBRA
liabilities B 98,346
Consolidated total liabilities A BEAZ 171,594
OTHER INFORMATION HitEH
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE_ZEXF
31ST MARCH, 2006 ZA=t-HLEE
Capital additions B - 53 - - - 62 115
Depreciation and amortisation 7 & [ # 8 - 53 352 - 13 157 575
Impairment losses on HESREEL
available-for-sale REER
financial assets 44,205 - - - - - 44,205
Net unrealised gain on BATEA
other financial assets BRzHEMe R
at fair value through BELRER
profit or loss Wz F8 48,613 - - - - - 48,613
Write-back of provision on  H{EHEZME
properties held for sale B ERE - - 160 - - - 160
Fair value gains on BEMEZ
investment properties AT ERR - - - - 1,666 - 1,666
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For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZF=-A=+—HLFE

7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 7 EEHR &)
Business segments (Continued) k%o (&)
2005 —EERF
Trading of
Securities building
trading materials and Property Operation
and renovation development of toll Property (As restated)
investment services and sales highway rental Unallocated Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHEE REHNES NEER SOy (m%3))
BRE  REERE RiE 48 mERE AHR 54
TEL TEL TAL TEL TEL TAL THL
INCOME STATEMENT i &
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE-_ZZ1E
31ST MARCH, 2005 ZA=1+-HLEE
REVENUE U &
External sales HONEE 63,638 20,306 246 11,153 21 - 95364
Segment results DEEE (38,025)  (5,671) 8,796 (200,214) (323) - (235,437)
Unallocated other APBREMEE
operating income LON 2,879
Unallocated corporate AABRDFE
expenses X (13,822)
Loss from operations HEBE (246,380)
Finance costs BERA (9,602)
Loss before taxation B BB B (255,982)
Taxation W1 42,000
Loss before minority interests  F &t D Bk B2 A1 518 (213,982)
Minority interests PR EE S 92,824
Loss for the year AEFEIE (121,158)
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7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2EER (#)

X%o® (&)

Business segments (Continued)

2005 —TFLF
Trading of
Securities building
wading  materials and Poperty  Operation
and  renowation  development of 1ol Property (s restated)
investment services and sales highway lentel  Unallocated  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HHEE  REMHES WEER BERH
REE  REERE Rt 48 nEaE *5F &8
Fin T TR Fir TR FitR Fir
BALANCE SHEET BEEER
AT 31ST MARCH, R-ZBZRF
2005 =ZA=Z+-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 135,342 4,609 54,057 75980 23,832 - 293,820
Interests in associates REEE DRl 2w 4,427 - - - 1,724 - 6,151
Unallocated corporate assets &2 E A A& E 123,213
Consolidated total assets GAEEELE 423,184
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities AHEEE 15 2,836 14,421 58,545 6 - 75823
Unallocated corporate APBRA
liabilities a8fE 116,318
Consolidated total liabilities 4 & & ELEE 192,141
OTHER INFORMATION HitEH
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE_ZZIF
31ST MARCH, 2005 =HA=+—-HLEE
Capital additions B - 70 - - - 1,469 1,539
Depreciation and amortisation 7 & [ # 8 26 50 528 4,562 - 879 6,045
Impairment losses on BEES
investment securities ZREEE 41,000 - - - - - 41,000
Impairment loss on property, #1% -HE X
plant and equipment LEZREEBS - - - 200,000 - — 200,000
Net unrealised gain HiRE2Z
on other investments RERWEFE 7,313 - - - - - 7,313
Net impairment losses on EWE S REMEKE
trade and other receivables ~ Z B {EEE
written back FREE - (4,146) 16,707 - - (451) 12,110
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2 EEH &)
Geographical segments hEDE
All of the Group’s operations are principally located in Hong REEFMBEBEIEMREBRPEA
Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The RAFME ([HE]) AEB ZITHIE
Group's administration is carried out in Hong Kong. RBEBETT
An analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical market, UTE2IAREERET SIS ZHE
irrespective of the origin of the goods and services, is (THREmRRBRIRHM) 247
presented below:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—zEAs —TTa4
FET FAEIT
Hong Kong BB 33,250 83,965
The PRC H 23 11,399
33,273 95,364
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of assets, UWTAREEEMEMEI S 2 EEREE
and capital additions to investment properties and property, IANRIZEMERZE BB K& E ARG
plant and equipment, analysed by the geographical area in hnz o
which the assets are located:
Capital additions to
Carrying amount property,
of assets plant and equipment
ME-KE
EER@E REBZERZM
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEXRE —EETRE —EBEXRE —ETTRF
TET FHET THET FAET
Hong Kong B 270,216 265,453 115 1,539
The PRC a2 121,763 157,731 - -
391,979 423,184 115 1,539
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2006

8. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Turnover represents the aggregate of the net amounts received

and receivable from third parties, during the year. An analysis

of the Group’s turnover, other income and gains, net is as

Bt 7% 3R M &
BE-BREAE=A=+—ALEE

8. EXBE HMUWARKGEFHE

EXRBRERFARFE =TSR RERHIE
FRAB AEEERE HMRARK

@mEFBEOMMT:

follows:
2006 2005
HK$"000 HK$'000
S L —TETRF
FER FAET
Turnover EERE
Securities trading and investment BFHEBEMEE 23,543 63,638
Renovation services &R 5,993 17,088
Operation of toll highway W BN &8 - 11,153
Trading of building materials BEMEES 3,674 3,218
Property development and sales MEZRLHE - 246
Property rental WERE 63 21
33,273 95,364
Other income Hth e A
Interest income F 2 WA 515 106
Sundry income I A 315 523
830 629
Gains, net Wz F 8
Net unrealised gain on other investments HEMRE 2 RERWNEFE - 7,313
Net unrealised gain on other financial assets A F({Ezt AfBz 2 &t
at fair value through profit or loss TREECRBIRNGEIFE 48,613 -
Fair value gains on investment properties "EMEZ N FERE 1,666 2,482
Write-back of provision on properties BRIELEZ2MEZ
held for sale BERD 160 -
50,439 9,795
84,542 105,788
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2006

9. FINANCE COSTS

B 7% 3R R M AL
HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE

9. BMEMKE

(As restated)

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&&E5)
S —ETRF
FET FAET
Interest on: F.2
Borrowings wholly repayable ARAFANEZHEECZEE
within five years
- bank borrowings —HRITEE 6,144 7,781
— other borrowings —HihEE 1,843 1,424
Convertible notes gk RE 1,574 397
9,561 9,602
10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. RBL AT 18
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging and BRERIBSEIAMERE LR ATIIEEE

crediting the following:

=]
1=

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2®AE —=EnF
FET FET
Charging: BB TFIIER:
Staff costs SN
— directors’ remuneration (note 11) —EBE=WME (MaE11) 725 1,168
— basic salaries and other benefits —HAF e REMEF 4,041 6,596
- retirement benefits scheme — R IRAE A ET B R
contributions 281 275
5,047 8,039
Auditors’ remuneration % B AL BN & 775 1,300
Depreciation and amortisation of ME -BEREZHETE
property, plant and equipment T 85 85 575 6,045
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE HELEE
plant and equipment &5 18 - 113
Net realised losses on other financial assets &R AF{EFF ABZF 2 4 &l
at fair value through profit or loss BECERBETE 3,181 -
Net realised losses on other investments EmigECS2REBFHE - 4,270
Operating lease payments (note 38) BT A SR (B 5E38) 1,818 3,030
Cost of inventories sold EETFERN 7,517 11,510
and crediting: WEFATHIEE:
Net rental income from investment KEHEPNETREME
properties under operating leases, 2B WA EEE
after deduction of outgoings of KANBR 492,000 7T
approximately HK$2,000 TH(ZTETRF:
(2005: HK$1,000) 1,000% 7T) 61 20
Share of associate’s taxation FEAG B & A R B IR 7 -
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS NEEZERESFHA LI ZME
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM <
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant RIBEBEBBERXSMERARARES
to The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the EWARBIEE R AEHE 1611565 5E
Stock Exchange and Section 161 of the Hong Kong CERFEESHME T

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Retirement
benefits
Directors’ Salaries and scheme 2006 2005
Name of directors Fees allowances  contributions Total Total
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHRER —ZEERE —ZEhF
HEEH Esue HeREHR sHEf R @t @t
FET FET FTHET FET FTiET
Executive directors HTEFE
Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic EREE - 320 12 332 524
Mr. Gao Feng St 38 - - 38 -
Mr. Lau Man Tak (note a) B (Hita) - 20 1 21 164
Mr. Wong Cho Fai, Nicholas HEBLAE

(note b) (P #Eb) - - - - -
Mr. Cheung Yu Shum, Jenkin ROREE

(note ¢) (&) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors B FEHTEE
Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen HEERE 15 - - 15 -
Mr. Pang Haiou FEBEEE - - - - -
Mr. Zuo Guang TERAE - - - - -
Mr. Kan Kwok Shu (note d) BB % £ (f3Ed) 100 - - 100 240
Mr. Shum Ka Hei (note e) ARBEE (MiEe) 209 - - 209 240
Mr. Fung Po Chuen (note f) B®RE R E (S 5 - - 5 -
Mr. Henry Tooze Henry Tooze’t &

(note f) (P 5ES) 5 - - 5 -
Total 2006 “TERFRR 372 340 13 725 1,168
Total 2005 “TTOFHR 480 676 12
Note: k=
(a) Resigned on 5th August, 2005 (a) RZZZERFNAAABBMT
(b) Appointed on 23rd May, 2005 and resigned on 5th (b) RZZEERFRA-_T=-AEZHE

October, 2005 WHR_ZZRhFE+ ARBEEE
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T —————————————————————————,

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(c) Appointed on 24th June, 2005 and resigned on 14th
February, 2006

(d) Resigned on 1st September, 2005
(e) Resigned on 13th February, 2006

(f)  Appointed on 17th March, 2006 and resigned on 30th
April, 2006

Highest paid individuals
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in

the Group, one (2005: one) was director of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments

B 7% 3R R M AL
HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE

MNEERESFMALTZHE &)

() EEM= (&)

© R-FFAFAA-TMABEE
YR-TEAF-ATHARE

(d R-ZZEZHRFNLA—BET
() W-ZEZTXE-A+=HEME

ERNFZATEREZREL
RIZEEXRFUA=ZTHEE

(b) ZEHMAL
rEBRERSFMALTERE %

—EFERE -R)ARAESF H
e BEEN EX-EBRALTZME

of the remaining individuals were as follows: m
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEXE —ETETRHF
FH& T FET
Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 1,085 1,728

Retirement benefits scheme R OKAE R T 81 5R

contributions 57 40
1,142 1,768

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals

ATHRSHFEMALHE T FIATEH

were within the following bands: :
2006 2005
Number of Number of
employees employees
—BEXRF —TERF
EEAH EEAH
Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T LA A 4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals, including directors and
employees, as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

FRNAEBTERATEESHFMAL
(BREZRREE) XME IESMA
ZN- L9 AN SE TS g g5 3
ZHE-FALBEEREEAME-
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12. TAXATION 12. BL1E
HRARBRENB AR MEFES
ERERVOEN HEENCHEBE 2 RB
BRABRA AL ENMEREAELE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as either the Company and its subsidiaries
either have no assessable profits for both years or have their

profits wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward. EAETB A
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—gEAE —TTng
FHRR Fb
Deferred taxation relating to FHEEREBOERERE Y
the origination and reversal of EIERIE (M 5E29)
temporary differences (note 29) - (42,000)
Taxation credit MIEE R - (42,000)

7R B ER B R B 1B 2 B IR B DA A R AR
BRABRZ AR EMES 2wk

The taxation on the Group’s loss before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic

taxation rates applicable to losses of the consolidated THEEREWNT:
companies as follows:
(As restated)
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
(m=E75)
—EEARE —EEREF
FERT FHET
Loss before taxation B Fi R E 18 (27,152) (255,982)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of R FTSME1T7 5% HE
17.5% (2005: 17.5%) ZHBE(ZTZRF117.5%) (4,752) (44,797)
Tax effect of expenses that are AR MM 2 B &
not deductible for tax purpose 10,312 8,923
Tax effect of income that are not ﬁ/,\u%%RLISU\Z
taxable for tax purpose M (737) (7,583)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERE H—r%ﬁz
not recognised Mg E (312) 31,826
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BRAEAAERTBEEZ
not previously recognised s & (5,587) (349)
Effect of different tax rates of EEMBEEEREX 2
subsidiaries operating in B BB A B B B R
other jurisdictions e 1,076 (30,020)
Taxation credit MIBE % - (42,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2006

13.

14.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of loss of HK$65,392,000 (2005:
HK$123,502,000, as restated)

Loss of

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the net
loss for the year of HK$26,438,000 (2005: HK$121,158,000,
as restated) and on the weighted average number of
347,773,969 (2005: 241,436,167) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic loss per share for the year ended
31st March, 2005 have been retrospectively adjusted for the
effect of the capital reorganisation (note 30(a) and (b))
approved by the shareholders of the Company on 6th April,
2005.

The adjustment to the comparative basic loss per share, arising
from the adoption of HKAS 32 is as follows:

Bt 75 R Y 5

Bz
T EEEE—————————

13.

14.

—ERAFZAST—BILEE

RKAAREFEAEBGEER

RARBRERBREBEAEBLEEDRE
E1865,392,000 BT (ZZT R F EE
123,502,000 7T &£ E 51|) 2 1B TEFA
RRABFIEHRE -

BREE

BREABEBEDDREAFE BB
5 ¥826,438,0008 L (Z 2T A F:
121,158,000 7T &€ &%) R F NE 81T
3 G N 19 20347,773,969R% (=&
T F G 241,436,1670%) & -

HEBE-TERAF=A=T-ALAT
SRR A IR P 2 B IR AT
BERARFBRER -FTHEMAR
B iR A B 2 BB B W
FEN LB EE30() R (D) -

BB B AR B35 2 LB
FREABAIEMT

HK cents
&AL

Reconciliation of 2005 loss per share: —EEhFERBE AR
Reported figure before adjustments AR EHT 50.1
Adjustments arising from adoption of HKAS 32 A E B G ERIENRFMEE 2 HAE 0.1
As restated BrE7 50.2
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - BERZE
Leasehold Leasehold Motor Furniture
Toll land and improve- Plant and vehicles and
highway buildings ments machinery and yachts fixtures Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEL HEWE BE RE BRR
g2y kgF #14& K RiEE R#E st
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
THE GROUP rEE
Cost BA
At 1st April, 2004 RZZENFNA—A 288,266 3,245 2,067 2,935 3,978 693 301,184
Reclassification EFNNE - - - (1,916) 1,916 - -
Additions RE - - - - 1,469 70 1,539
Disposals HE - - - (288) (5,222) - (5,510)
At 31st March, 2005, RZZZRE
as restated ZA=+-8"
K575 288,266 3,245 2,067 731 2,141 763 297,213
At 1st April, 2005, RZZETRE
as per above mA—H Wt 288,266 3,245 2,067 731 2,141 763 297,213
Additions NE - - 62 - - 53 115
Disposals v - - (1,302) - - - (1,302)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (665) - - (18) (683)
At 31st March, 2006 RZZETRE
ZA=t+-H 288,266 3,245 162 731 2,141 798 295,343
Depreciation, wE-BH
amortisation and RAE
impairment
At st April, 2004 RZZENFNA—A 19,882 2,842 1,085 100 1,375 315 25,599
Reclassification ESpgl - - - (76) 76 - -
Depreciation provided REEHE
for the year B 4,485 174 449 431 358 148 6,045
Impairment loss AEERR
recognised REBE
for the year 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
Disposals HE - - - (288) (1,602) - (1,890)
At 31st March, 2005, RZZZTHE
as restated “A=1+-H
el 224,367 3,016 1,534 167 207 463 229,754
At 1st April, 2005, RZZETRE
as per above MA—H-WE 224,367 3,016 1,534 167 207 463 229,754
Depreciation provided AEEHE
for the year BB - 13 31 1 382 148 575
Disposals & - - (1,302) - - - (1,302)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - (145) - - (11) (156)
At 31st March, 2006 RZZERE
“A=1+-H 224,367 3,029 118 168 589 600 228,871
Net book values BHFE
At 31st March, 2006 RZEERE
“A=1+-H 63,899 216 44 563 1,552 198 66,472
At 31st March, 2005 R_ZZLF
ZA=t+-H 63,899 229 533 564 1,934 300 67,459
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. WE-BERRE (&)

The Group's leasehold land and buildings are situated in the
PRC held under long term land use rights. As the prepaid land
lease payment cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease payment is included in
the cost of land and buildings as a finance lease in property,
plant and equipment in accordance with HKAS 17.

THE GROUP

As at 31st March, 2005, the directors, after considering the
economic condition, had reviewed the carrying value of the
Group’s toll highway with reference to director’s valuation
made under a discounted cash flow analysis of the projected
cash flow to be generated from the toll highway operation at
a discount rate of 7% per annum and determined that the
recoverable amounts of this asset had declined below its
carrying value. Accordingly, the carrying value of this asset as
at 31st March, 2005 was reduced by HK$200,000,000.

AEBZHELHWEEFURFTERE
Rt wERER A AN BENEE L
FIETRERN L1 R FRH A S AL
HEHAEEFENREELESHELSE
1THRENE BELRRBZEREERRE
R BRBFERAEZA-

rEM

R_ZBEZRF=ZRA=+—H EFEEK
BERE C2ZEEH —AINT%NF
FRERWEABEBELZBF AR
RenBFRzMRBASRESNET
ZAE A AEEKRE QK ZREE
VTEEFHEEEZARESECRER
NEEEE R AFEER-_TFTH
FZRAR=t-BzREEZRD
200,000,000/% 7T °

Leasehold Furniture
improvements and fixtures Total
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEWSE L
®1& REE et
FET FET FE&T
THE COMPANY ¥ NN
Cost R AR
At 1st April, 2004 and RZZEZMEFOMA—AR
at 31st March, 2005 —EERF=ZA=+—H 1,402 467 1,869
At 1st April, 2005 RZEFTRFEA—H 1,402 467 1,869
Additions NE 62 - 62
Disposals & (1,302) - (1,302)
At 31st March, 2006 RZEEF=A=+—H 162 467 629
Depreciation and amortisation EREE
At 1st April, 2004 RZEFTOFEA—H 1,018 195 1,213
Depreciation provided for the year NEEFHTEREE 384 93 477
At 31st March, 2005 R-ZEERF=ZA=+—H 1,402 288 1,690
At 1st April, 2005 R-ZETRFNA—H 1,402 288 1,690
Depreciation provided for the year REEITERE 18 94 112
Disposals & (1,302) - (1,302)
At 31st March, 2006 RZEERF=ZA=+—H 118 382 500
Net book values REEE
At 31st March, 2006 R_ZEZERF=ZRA=+—H a4 85 129
At 31st March, 2005 R-ZEETRF=A=+—H - 179 179
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For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZAF=-ZA=+—HILFE
S

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWH
THE GROUP
rEE
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
—EEAE —TETRF
TET FAT
At beginning of the year FH 23,118 20,636
Fair value gains ARSI & 1,666 2,482
Disposal of subsidiaries &S B A A (9,460) -
At end of the year F I 15,324 23,118
The investment properties were revalued at 31st March, 2006 WEMEDRCRBLEEY G ER
on market value basis by RHL Appraisal Ltd. as to FTRFATAHE R B R 2 R R A B 178
approximately HK$5,520,000 and LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyor’s EMARAR EMEEZESHBEBAWE
Limited as to approximately HK$9,804,000, both of which R-_ZEERFZAZ+—HZEBENAE
were independent firms of professional property valuers. The 5,520,000 7 7T & £79,804,000/% 7T ° 7
revaluation increase of approximately HK$1,666,000 has been BESERR AR EMEAL REGR
credited to the income statement. #2#91,666,000 BT Bt Az K-
The Group’s investment properties comprise: REEMMBREMERRE:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
e L —EERF
FERT FHET
Properties situated in Hong Kong held under: E & &R E T HOEH 2 W
- long leases —REIME A 5,420 10,950
- medium-term leases — R ERAR A 100 100
Properties situated in the PRC held under: R BERE T2 HAOFEZWE:
— long-term land use rights — R I A A - 1,320
— medium-term land use rights — FR B 4 A 9,804 10,748
15,324 23,118
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For the year ended 31st March, 2006

17.

18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

PR ETE Y
HE-—BEAFE=A=+-BLFHE
___________________________________________________________________

17. R B QA Al 2 #E &=

THE COMPANY

AAT

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

e —ETnF

FET FHET

Unlisted shares, at cost EEMG K AE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries less JE U B B R B FRE R

impairment losses (A E 1E 67,004 126,253

Amounts due to subsidiaries FE < B B 2 Bl ;B (6,275) (3,369)

60,729 122,884

The Company’s cost of investments in the unlisted shares of
its directly held subsidiaries is in aggregate less than HK$1,000.

Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of
the directors, the amounts will not be repayable within twelve
months of the balance sheet date and are accordingly classified
as non-current.

AARBEREEEFEWBRAR ZIE
R A AR B EE 1,000 T

FEA () P8 2 B 2 BOR R | AaT
NERBEETERR - EFRAR BEN
BEreNGEREF —FRER Bt
ZERHC D BERRZBZERBEE-

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March, RAREXEMBARR-ZZTF=
2006 are set out in note 44. A=+—B2=FBHRMHE44 -
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES REERATRIZER
THE GROUP
AEE
(As restated)
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
(i=E75)
—EEXRE —EERF
FERT FET
Share of net assets }*ffiéf?%’*ﬁ 1,879 1,872
Amounts due from associates less JE Us B 2 R F)
impairment losses Ve 161 4,279
2,040 6,151
The amounts due from associates are unsecured and non- JE L Bt = R A IE?%E?RTﬂﬂ&T\EJrf'J Bo

interest bearing. In the opinion of the directors, the amounts
due from associates will not be repayable within one year of
the balance sheet date and are accordingly classified as non-
current.

i%ﬁw%*mﬂﬂz L RNBRIBRH TGN
%Ei%ﬂr—iﬁqa%@’llﬁt ZERED
DRRERBDEE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2006

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REtE AR 2R (&)
As at 31st March, 2006, the Group had interests in the NRZZBERNE=ZA=+—HB KEFRT
following significant associates: NEEBHL AR ZEZRIT:

Proportion of

Paid up nominal value of
Form of Place of share capital/  issued share capital/
business incorporation/ registered registered capital Principal activity/
Name of associate structure establishment capital held by subsidiaries place of operation
W B D B A
BRTRE
ML B8RE AMERTEERS
BENRER L= Fie B3 4t B N B L R b B
%
Asia Standard Development  Incorporated  Hong Kong HK$2 50  Investment holding/
Company Limited Hong Kong
Ealigzavi BB 28T 50 REZKR/EE
Era Winner Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong HK$2 50  Property holding/
Hong Kong
BrAERLDA EallioAva R 2B 50 REEKR/EBE

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in

EFEeRRLERMEZARAS

hh MK SN\ =
RN

HAEEAFREXFEBEEAFENGEARN
SERAFEFHBAEEFAZIERR
H-EFERRWINLAEBELRE
BB EREBAR TR

the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results of
the Group for the year or form a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give details
of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

AEBBERR ZUMBENBEI SN
T

associates is set out below:

2006 2005

HK$°000 HK$'000

—BEBEAE —EERE

FHx FHET

Total assets BE®E 32,658 32,609
Total liabilities BfEERE (85,112) (84,864)
Net liabilities BEFE (52,454) (52,255)
Revenue W = 186 217
Loss for the year KEEZEE (893) (899)

AEERTEFER RN 2 REREE-

The Group has no unrecognised losses in respect of the
associates during both years and cumulatively.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2006

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Bt 75 R Y 5

BE-_ZZREF=A=1+—BILEE
T EEEE—————————

19. THESREE

THE GROUP
M
2006
HK$'000
—EBAE
TR

Unlisted equity securities in overseas,
at cost less impairment losses

Impairment losses of approximately HK$44,205,000 (2005:
HK$41,000,000) in respect of investments in unlisted equity
securities have been identified and charged to the income
statement, which were determined with reference to the
investees’ financial results and operations.

Details of the Group's investments in unlisted equity securities
included above and note 20 below disclosed pursuant to
section 129(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are
as follows:

WO E TR E S
452 75 909 (8 A 4

12,153

K2ZRSRERTAZHBEER
BiER AEEREFLFRERRRE
JE5 18 #944,205,0008 0 (Z T T A F -
41,000,000/ L) I B Yz K 0Bk -

FRRTERWF208FERE R RIS
NIMGEFRBEZAREZIELTRELSR

B BREABET:

Proportion of

nominal value of

Effective

Place of issued share capital/ proportion of issued

incorporation/ registered capital share capital/registered

Name of investee operations held by the subsidiaries capital held by the Group
Ffs B 2 B A 15 AEBE R

ERITRE ERITRE

EmRL AMER AMER

BRIZREARNER R B EELH B L A
LimmEEp T2 PRC/PRC 45% 22.95%

REBR QA REHE

The above company is not regarded as an associate of the
Group because the Group has no significant influence over
its affairs.

20. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

HRAEESE LR RAREHRLBEBEAY
BN BWREFARITREFEAEEBE R

o

20. REXF

THE GROUP
NEE
2005
HK$'000
—ZTETRF
FETT

Unlisted equity securities in overseas,
at cost less impairment losses
Unlisted debt securities in Hong Kong, at cost

BINEE TR RE
12 PR SRR R 1B T R
ERFLTEBES

56,360
1,500

57,860
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For the year ended 31st March, 2006

Bt 7% 3R M &
BE-BREAE=A=+—ALEE

21. INVENTORIES 21. &
THE GROUP
rEE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—zEiE —TETRF
FET FET
Building materials BEMH 1,509 1,336
Properties held for sale FEYE 3,252 3,180
4,761 4,516

Included in properties held for sale amounting to
HK$3,252,000 (2005: HK$3,180,000) were properties carried
at net realisable value. The remaining inventories were carried
at cost.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are as

FEWMERFE3252,0008 T (ZTFH

F:3,180,000/8 7)) & A & 3R FHEF R 2

Y - mEMTEIZKABET K-
22. EWESZ R HEMIRIE

KBS REMEKRREZREERT:

follows:
THE GROUP
rEE
2006 2005
HK$"000 HK$°000
—2RAE —=Tng
FET FET
Trade receivables e E 5 ER 1A 2,965 4,993
Amounts due from customers for JEWEE TIREFPHE
renovation works (note a) (KfzEa) - 2
Retentions receivable FE R B8 BR 18 122 628
Other receivables and prepayments H b B W BR 1B R TR A 5RIB
(note b) (M¥7EDb) 168,638 128,705
171,725 134,328

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE
S

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22 EREZREAMRE (&)
The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days to 90 AEERTEESEPTFANTF60RE
days to its trade customers. As at 31st March, 2006 and 31st VHZEEH R-_ZTZTX izﬂ =+—
March, 2005, the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade AR-—ZETERF-A=-+—H A5EE
receivables is as follows: WE 5 RIE 2 iRk H AT lZD—F :
THE GROUP
AEH
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
S —2ERF
FET FET
Up to 30 days ZE30H 821 241
31 to 90 days 31290H 459 354
91 day to 365 days 91&365H 1,635 3,447
Over 365 days HBiE365H 50 951
2,965 4,993
Included in trade and other receivables is the following amount B 5 REMEWRIES B T il 8 E i
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency Mo B UARRINEEEAINGERL
of the Company to which they relate: LB
THE GROUP
AEE
2006 2005
'000 000
—EERE —TTRHF
F T
Renminbi AR 26,958 34,623
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁé@ﬁﬁi{

For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
T mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm———,

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. RWE S REMERE (&)

Note: B 5
(a) Amounts due from (to) customers for renovation works (a) U (ER) BIEIEREPRIE
THE GROUP
rEH
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
—BEAE —ETR%
FERT FET
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits B EA A KR AT R
less recognised losses A B R E R - 5
Less: Progress billings R E A R - (39)
- (34)
Represented by: RE&:
Due from customers included in current assets  F|AREIEE 2 EWE P 1B - 2
Due to customers included WARBBEZENERRIE
in current liabilities (note 26) (Kt3E26) - (36)
- (34)
(b) Included in other receivables and prepayments is an amount of (b) EHBEUWREREBEMNKEBETHN —

approximately HK$123,437,000 (2005: HK$69,688,000) placed
with a company which is an independent third party, for

securities trading and other investment purposes.

The amount is secured, interest free and repayable on

demand.

23. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

MBYE=FAR AEEFEEREM
WE RS 2 IEL 123,437,000 7T (=
T E A 469,688,000 7T) °

ZEREBERM 2R RABERE

T

2. B AFEFFAEBZ2HMEME

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E

THE GROUP
rEE
2006
HK$'000
—EEREF
FExT

Listed securities held for trading: BEEEZ ELM&ES:
— Equity securities — Hong Kong —REmEFLF B 103,237
- Equity securities — Overseas — R EH - 7,750
Market value of listed securities EHMESME 110,987

At 31st March, 2006, the carrying amount of interest in the
following company exceeded 10% of total assets of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE
S

23. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 3. RAFEFAEEZZHMBERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) E (&)
Place of Particulars of
Name incorporation Principal activities issued shares held Interest held
£ M8 AR L 3t B TEEK BRTROFE FrisE s
China Solar Energy Holdings Bermuda Provision of investment Ordinary share 2.78%
Limited (formerly known as advisory services,
RexCapital International participation in securities
Holdings Limited) market and money lending
EE N BEIRE Hxﬁﬁﬁ A BRE % & B AR 75 Rl 2.78%
(AT 78 48D 2= B 42 AR SEFHTIE R
BRAA) BEXER
24. OTHER INVESTMENTS 24. Hit R E
THE GROUP
REE
2005
HK$'000
—EERE
FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE LT 2w E 5 67,344
Equity securities listed in Overseas I T 2 T 8,750
Market value of listed equity securities EhERESF A 76,094
25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. B4 R IESZREEH
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE AN
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—EEXRE —EEREF —EEXRE —EERE
FET FET FET FET
Bank balances and cash RITHERERE 8,517 48,617 334 32,358
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁé@ﬁﬁi{
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 5. BERRESEHEEB (4)
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the e ReREWMERNE BakRas
purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement. HIEERREUATEE:
THE GROUP
rEH
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—zEAE —TTn4
FER FAT
Bank balances and cash as per above RITHBERE 0 Lt 8,517 48,617
Bank overdrafts (note 27) R17IE S (MisE27) (6,938) (13,100)
1,579 35,517
Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet EEABRLZ2REGRBESEHEBEER
are the following amounts denominated in currencies other BTITMEANGHBECEB 2R
than the functional currency of the Company to which they LAONB B 2 858
relate:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH P N
2006 2005 2006 2005
'000 000 '000 ‘000
—®®AE -TTHF -BEAE -TTEA
Fr T Fr T
United States Dollar e 2 2 - -
Renminbi AR 8,252 16,832 - -
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26 ENESRHEAMERE
THE GROUP
rEE
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EERE —EERE
FERT FAT
Trade payables ENE 5RIE 1,834 1,920
Amounts due to customers for EREHIRERFPKIEA
contract work (note 22(a)) (M 3E22(a)) - 36
Retention payables e IR BB BR 1B 179 548
Other payables and accruals H b fE < BR 1B 2 fE 5T ZRIB 80,908 82,204
82,921 84,708
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE
S

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 26 ENEZREAMKRE (&)
As at 31st March, 2006 and 31st March, 2005, the ageing RZEERF=ZA=T—AKZZZTH
analysis of the Group’s trade payables is as follows: FoA=F+—H AEKEENESEREZ
RO T :
THE GROUP
AEE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EERE —TTRHF
FER Fib
Up to 30 days EE30H 420 78
31 to 90 days 31£290H 239 203
Over 90 days H3E90H 1,175 1,639
1,834 1,920
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade EERAENESEBE EEEHEER
payables approximates to their fair value. FEEE-
Included in trade and other payables is the following amount ENEBESZREMBRBESE TMEKRRQ T
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency HEAZERBZREEUINEEA 2 E
of the Company to which they relate: (T
THE GROUP
AEE
2006 2005
'000 ‘000
—EBEXREF —ETRF
Fr Tt
Renminbi AR 74,762 78,807
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For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. RITREMEE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH K NN
2006 2005 2006 2005
HKS$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EBEXRE —ETRF —EEXREF —TTRF
FEx FHETT FERT FA&T
Non-current IR B
Bank borrowings RITEE
— secured —BHE#H - 2,337 - -
Current B
Bank borrowings RITEE
— secured —BHE#H 1,354 5,570 - -
- unsecured — KR 41,226 44,056 - -
Bank overdrafts BITEX
- secured (note 25) — HHEM (KzE25) 6,938 13,100 - -
49,518 62,726 - -
Other borrowings Hipg &
- secured — B 36,713 41,765 23,643 23,643
86,231 104,491 23,643 23,643
Total borrowings EEHE 86,231 106,828 23,643 23,643
The maturity of borrowings is as follows: fEEIHBEMT:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH P N
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—®EAE -TTHF —¥EAE  -TTF
FET FHET FER FAET
Within one year or on demand —F A EEK 86,231 104,491 23,643 23,643
Between one and two years —FEMF - 304 - -
Between two and five years MEZERF - 961 - -
Wholly repayable with five years ZBRAFRNE2HEE 86,231 105,756 23,643 23,643
Over five years HBiE A F - 1,072 - -
As at 31st March, 2006 the average effective interest rate of RZEERF=ZA=1+—H BN —FNR
the bank borrowings repayable within one vyear is fé?ﬁz%ﬁﬁ%% FTHEBRNENREF
approximately 6.7% p.a. (2005: 6.12% p.a.). As at 31st FlEETE(ZZEERF BF 6.12%) o1
March, 2005, the effective interest rate of the non-current —EERF= )EJ +—H JERERITIE
bank borrowings was approximately 3.9% p.a.. BECEBRMELNRENEIIE
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27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 27. BRITREMEE (&)

Other borrowings are interest bearing at the rate of HMEBEEUROFENEINE (ZEE
approximately 9.02% p.a. (2005: 8.29% p.a.). FEMEKG29E) FHEF B

JE 7 By 1 B R A1 B 2 R (40 0 0
CEFEN T

The carrying amounts of non-current borrowings and short-
term borrowings approximate to their fair values.

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the BECZEEAEDUTLEE BETEEMN:
following currencies:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

AEE NN
2006 2005 2006 2005
‘000 '000 ‘000 '000
—EBEAREF —ZTTRF —EEXRE —ETTRF
Fi T Fi T
Hong Kong dollar BT 44,869 58,526 23,643 23,643
Renminbi AR 41,226 48,302 - -
United States Dollar ETT 136 - - -
86,231 106,828 23,643 23,643

Included in the other borrowings as at 31st March, 2006 is RZEENF=ZA=+—HzHMEES

an amount of HK$23,643,000 (2005: HK$23,643,000)
advanced by Asean Resources Limited (“Asean”). It bore
interest at Hong Kong prime rate plus 1% and was originally

=F A Asean Resources Limited ( [ Asean] )
2% 723,643,000 0 (Z 2T A F:
23,643,000 TT) - ZEFRIBIL B HE

BAHEMEFE REEEARN T
Z_F+-REPEBEE- R _TTZ
FRA AseanAEBFERPE_ZZE
issued share capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the MERA WHZEREURLF—HE
Company. BB AR 2EE FHITRAMEEA

unsecured and due for repayment in full in November 2002.
In May 2002, Asean agreed to reschedule the repayment date
until May 2004 and the amount is secured by the entire

RZZEERFARARZZETAFEAA K
7~ A) B Aseana] 374 7T 175 5% - Asean R B
— R 23,643,000 TER R EGHE
amount of HK$23,643,000 and the respective accrued interest SAFBEZERBPE_TEEZRE+—HF-
to November 2006. Accordingly, it is classified as a current Eit ZEFEAMINERBEE-
liability.

In May 2005 and June 2006, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements with Asean that the latter agreed
to further extend the repayment date of the loan in the
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 28. IR RE

BAEMFZABRREBEABERH 2ES
FIE T

The movement of the liability component of the convertible
notes for both years is set out below:

THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY

AEERELQTF

(As restated)

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$°000

(&=&E5)

S i B

FET FET

Nominal value of convertible notes issued BETABRRER ZHEE 31,200 32,400
Equity component (note 32) I (MaE32) (594) (317)
Liability component on initial recognition BRERZEEES 30,606 32,083
Interest charged BEFLE 1,574 397
Interest paid B F B (980) (80)
Conversion of convertible notes Hipa i EE - (32,400)
Redemption of convertible notes & o] o] #2 I8 =i (31,200) -

On 7th February, 2005, the Company issued convertible notes
of HK$32.4 million with a conversion price of HK$0.03 per
share. The convertible notes carried interest at 1% per annum
and are redeemable on 6th February, 2006 unless they were
previously converted or redeemed. The HK$32.4 million
convertible notes were fully converted into 1,080,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company during the
year ended 31st March, 2005.

On 6th January, 2005, the Company entered into placing
and subscription agreements with independent third parties
for the placing and subscription of convertible notes with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$31.2 million (“CB Placing
Agreement”) and HK$78.0 million (“CB Subscription
Agreements”), respectively, convertible into shares of the
Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.03 each. These
convertible notes carried interest at 3% per annum and are
redeemable six months from the date of issue. The CB Placing
Agreement was completed on 18th May, 2005. The HK$31.2
million convertible notes were fully redeemed during the year
ended 31st March, 2006.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2006

28.

29.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

On 14th July, 2005, the Company entered into cancellation
agreements with the subscribers of the CB Subscription
Agreements. Details of the CB Subscription Agreements were
set out in the circular and announcements to the shareholders
of the Company dated 21st February, 2005 and 14th July,
2005, respectively.

Interest expense on the convertible notes is calculated using
the effective interest method by applying the effective interest
rate of 5% p.a. to the liability component.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the only component of deferred tax liability
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

B 7% 3R R M AL
HE-ZZ R E=ZA=1T—HLLFE

28.

29.

ARKRER (&)

R-ZFTRFLATHA ARRERE
REBWMERBBARI LA H - RIER
B cFRBARANRR BRI RIE =
TETERF_A-t+— E&_ttﬂﬁt
AtHHEZBRZBHEAE

AHREER 2T SR ABRM XA
5 AEBIMRACERFRNERS%
3 3E Bt 15

AEBEME—TER ZLLHEE%%B’ &
HRBAMRBEFEZESHUET

Temporary

difference

attributable to

toll highway

U 2D BE FE A

TEEHE

HK$'000

FET

At 1st April, 2004 R-ZZFEZMFMA—A 42,000

Credit to income statement AU E R (42,000)
At 31st March, 2005 and RZZEZRF=ZA=1+—HBR

at 31st March, 2006 —EERF=-A=+—H -

At 31st March, 2006, the Group has unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$426,559,000 (2005: HK$458,589,000), part
of which has not yet been agreed with the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department, available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unutilised tax losses as at 31st March, 2006 and
31st March, 2005 are losses of approximately HK$27,757,000
that will be expired in five years and the remaining balance
does not expire under the current tax legislation.

R-ZERNFZAZ+—B AE@EAH
BHNAREMN 2 RDBABRBEEN A
426,559,000 ot (= & T A &
458,589,000/ 7T) ' H» & REI AR LS
BB REX G B TR ER R R
%Uiﬁfﬂé'aﬁzj’[ﬁﬁdﬁ}ﬁ%@ﬂaﬁ% VR SE T TE
BE-RNR_ZEEXF=ZA=1+—BE-Z
ERF=ZA=+"B2Z2ABABBKEIE
BIEBRN AF NI B4 £27,757,0007% 7T
2R ARERRBERATHBAN R E
/Hﬁo

—zzxgag bsznBwarada 105 [N



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7 3R R MY &
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZAF=-ZA=+—HILFE
S

29. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 29. IEFER 1B (&)

At 31st March, 2006, the Group has other deductible NRZTBERNE=Z/F=1+—R K&EHHD
temporary differences of approximately HK$113,393,000 T SR T BB RS 1B 2 oAb A HUR
(2005: HK$115,058,000) in respect of allowance and ZFEAA113,393,0008 L (ZEZERHF:
impairment losses recognised. No deferred tax assets has been 115,058,000/ 7T) - AR Al BE T & E 4 &

recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

RPEMEHEATRERZR R ER
ZEANRERERBABRENAEE-
RIBERTIREBEAD ZFAHNRERER

These deductible temporary differences do not expire under im) R B B o
the current tax legislation.
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R A<
Notes Number of shares Amount
B 5 BHHAE o
HK$'000
FA&T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: FREEE I ERk:
Authorised: ETE
At 1st April, 2004 and RZZEZNFMNA—H-
31st March, 2005 and ZEERF=-A=1T—HBK
31st March, 2006 —“EEXF=-R=1+—H 15,000,000,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRAR:
At 31st March, 2004 RZZEEMNF=R=1+—H
(Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each) (BREECOE T ZEBR) 4,511,445,970 45,114
Issue of shares on private placement AR ABREFAEITRG 902,280,000 9,023
Conversion of convertible notes ABTHRRER 1,080,000,000 10,800
At 31st March, 2005 RZZEZERF=R=1+—H
(Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each) (BREEAETZEBAR) 6,493,725,970 64,937
Share consolidation Bt & Of (a) (6,169,039,672) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each FREME020E T2 EBR 324,686,298 64,937
Capital reduction P& S 1Rk (b) - (61,690)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREMBEMNATZERR 324,686,298 3,247
Issue of shares on private placement AFLABE A ETRGD (0) 26,500,000 265
At 31st March, 2006 RZEERFEF=ZA=+—H
(Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each) (BREEOEBTZEAR) 351,186,298 3,512
Notes: B 5 -
(a) Pursuant to the special resolution passed on 6th April, 2005, (@) BER-_ZEZTAFHNASNABBTR =

effective on 7th April, 2005, every 20 issued shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company be consolidated into
1 issued share of HK$0.20 each (the “Consolidated Share”) in
the share capital of the Company (the “Share Consolidation”).
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PR ETE Y
HE-FEAE=A=+-ALFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b) On 7th April, 2005, the issued share capital of the Company be
reduced by canceling paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.19
on each Consolidated Share (the “Capital Reduction”) in issue
so that each Consolidated Share shall be treated as one fully-
paid up share of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company.
Accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced from an amount of approximately HK$64,937,000 to
approximately HK$3,247,000 represented by 324,686,298
consolidated shares. The entire credit amount arising from the
Capital Reduction was applied to set off the accumulated losses
of the Company.

(c)  On 6th January, 2005, a share subscription agreement (as
amended by 3 supplemental agreements dated 18th February,
4th March and 15th March, 2005 respectively) was entered
into between the Company and an independent investor under
which the investor subscribed for 530,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company at a price of HK$0.03 per share.
The issued price of HK$0.03 represented a discount of
approximately 9.09% to the average closing price of HK$0.033
per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange from 19th November,
2004 to 14th December, 2004, both dates inclusive. The
subscription was completed on 18th May, 2005 and 26,500,000
new shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at a price of
HK$0.60 per share were issued since share consolidation was
carried out on 7th April, 2005. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$15.9 million were used for the working capital
of the Group.

All the ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu
with the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24th April, 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the 2002 Scheme”) which will expire on 23rd April,
2012 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors, eligible employees and consultants. Under the 2002
Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may at its
discretion offer to any employee, including executive directors,
or consultants of the Company and/or its subsidiaries options
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a consideration of
HK$1 for each lot of share options granted. Options granted
should be accepted within 30 days from the date of grant.

30. RA (&)

by RZTTRAFMNALBHEIRAQRE
TRA FRABAARSEEITE MR
fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁo.19;‘%ﬁ%ﬁziﬂ&$(rﬂxﬁm
W) BUEARRSEHERGERBEAR
ETHMXEFH&ETEO.OL%EZ—HX.?%&E
BRp B ARARZBEEHITRABALY
64,937,000/ 7T T % = 493,247,000/ 7T
2.324,686,2981% & Bf B 17 o A HI A IR A
EEZEBRESBRBRERBEAARZRG
EiE -

(c) RZEZERF—AXNH ARQRRIE—2F
VIREE RO RERE (KH B 5
AB-_ETRAF-_A+NB - ZAMNBE=
BRTHBZ=B®FZHHIEE) BHit Z
BEEATROBILZRBEE REX
/AET530,000,0001%&@@0.01;‘%7‘52%&
BEe0.03B L2 HETE BN _ZTWF
+—BA+tAhBE-_ZZNF+_A+1W
H (BEZMAR) B ATk 8%0.033%
T2 FHRTEIEL9.09%  ZRERN
ZETERFRATNABRER MERZ
Tﬁi@HtELHkPAméEMt
80608 Lz BTE  FITARRA A
26,500,000 Z A E{E0.0178 /L2 FT A% -
FT 15 #715,900,00078 JT 2 J% 8 7 1A B A
REEBZEEES-

FARTZMELTBRNE N HAER
BELtBR=ZARSHE-

31. BRESTE

ARBR_ZZE_FMA _+HBEHEMN
BR-_E——FHA-_t=—BERZE
Bt E ([T _F58]) *2H
MERREREBDTRESE AEKRERR
BRE-RE_FT_FFE A2AEF
gaMBREIAES (BEARAR R, X
HEHMBARZATEEHER) REAR
BARRBRMD zBRE-RLBREZS
HRE/VET - REZBEREANKEH
HHEF =T HRE®R-
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. BREST & ()

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company and will not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, or (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2002 Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the 2002 Scheme, without a prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any
other schemes, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the 2002 Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is granted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from
that date. The period during which an option may be exercised
will be determined by the board of directors in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted
more than 10 years after the date of approval of the 2002
Scheme. Subject to earlier termination by the Company in
general meeting or by the board of directors’ resolution at a
general meeting, the 2002 Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years after the date of adoption of the
2002 Scheme.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZF=-A=+—HLFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. BR T & (&)
The maximum number of shares (issued and to be issued) in br B ESRRBLEIN REM T @A 8
respect of which options may be granted to any eligible person BAREREGERALTATELE CER
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total AR 2EERETEITROEE &
number of shares of the Company in issue, unless a ZMSHBARARSETRMNDES % -

shareholders’ approval has been obtained.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share TREBHE_ZTERF=HA=1T—H
options held by employees and movements in the 2002 IEREAFER ST _F:tEFREEF
Scheme during the two years ended 31st March, 2006. BEZEREREZESHFF
Number of share options
BREHEA

Exercise Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Date price at during at 31.3.2005
of grant per share 31.3.2004 the year and 31.3.2006

HK$
R-ZZTREF
=A=+—H
R-ZZEBONF R=ZZEBXEF
ZA=+-~8 ZA=+-8
REBH FRITEE i R AT FREM EE R4

T
Employees == 9.12.2002 0.202 12,956,000 (12,956,000) -
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32. OTHER RESERVES 32. Hittf#E
THE GROUP &~ EE
Capital Convertible Investment
redemption notes  properties Special Contributed
reserve reserve revaluation reserve surplus Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARRE REM%E
BB A e ERRHE KRl E BABH @z
THx FiEx FEx FEx T TR
Balance at RZTZTMEF
31st March, 2004, —A=1+—H
as previously reported ZEE WA 2] 13,878 - 1,385 78,176 684,966 778,405
Initial recognition of NEHER
convertible notes AHRRERE
— equity component and —Bafs kMERX
interest expenses (note 28) (Fizx28) - 317 - - - 317
Conversion of convertible RBRAREER
notes - (317) - - - (317)
Balance at RZTETHEF
31st March, 2005, ZRA=+—H"
as restated rE5| 13,878 - 1,385 78,176 684,966 778,405
Balance at 1st April, 2005, R-ZZEZRFMA—H"
as per above mE 13,878 - 1,385 78,176 684,966 778,405
Opening adjustment for the KmB BT ED
adoption of HKAS 40 F405 2 BMAR - - (1,385) - - (1,385)
Balance at 1st April, 2005, RZZEETAFEA—H
as restated e RET 13,878 - - 78176 684,966 777,020
Initial recognition of NEBRRTARER
convertible notes
— equity component and —Bads kMERX
interest expenses (note 28) (Hi3E28) - 594 - - - 594
Redemption of convertible (e
notes - (594) - - - (594)
Balance at RZTETREF
31st March, 2006 “A=t+—Hz&#% 13,878 - - 78,176 684,966 777,020
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32. OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 32. HitifE & (&)

As at 31st March, 2005, the investment property revaluation
reserve of the Group of approximately HK$1,385,000 was
wholly attributable to the associates of the group.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
cancellation of an amount of approximately HK$48,000,000
from the share premium account of the Company and the
credit of an amount of approximately HK$610,247,000 of
the Company’s share capital cancelled in 2002 and the
contribution of approximately HK$26,719,000 from the
placing of warrants in 2002 that were expired in 2003.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by
the Company in exchange for the nominal amount of share
capital of its subsidiaries acquired at the date of a previous
group reorganisation.

R-ZEERF=ZA=Z+—H K5 H
#91,385,0008 L2 I EMEEHFEEE
HEAEBBEARME.

RARZHARBEBEIHARTRMD G
{EBR & # #748,000,0008 7T A B A=
T FaAHEAARAREZA
610,247,000 LR KRN T ZF g
ER_ZT=FERIARAREEZFE
FRIE#726,719,000% JT °

AEBRHKRFEREARANEAZEH
E 4 B H Bt 3 4 BT W R B B X B B PR
BITRAHEEZENBE QR RAEE
ZER

—zzxsan bssEwBrarRaa 111 |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7 3R R MY &
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE-_ZZAF=-ZA=+—HILFE
S

32. OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 32. Hibf&HE (&)

THE COMPANY ¥ NN
Share Capital Convertible
premium redemption Contributed notes Accumulated
account reserve surplus reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEARER TRERE
R 15 % 18 BR ®E  BARH e RitEE @t
FitT FHT FHT FHT TR FHT
Balance at RZTTMEF
31st March, 2004 ZRA=+—HZ#&#H 435,004 13,878 907,760 - (1,113,416) 243,226
Initial recognition of NEBRRTARER
convertible notes (note 28) (KFzE28) - - - 317 - 317
Conversion of convertible RBRAREER
notes 21,917 - - (317) - 21,600
Issue of shares ELalian) 9,023 - - - - 9,023
Shares issue expenses BIRGORS (293) - - - - (293)
Loss for the year, as restated FREE LET - - - - (123,502) (123,502)
Balance at RZTETHEF
31st March, 2005, =RA=+—H
as restated 2 RET 465,651 13,878 907,760 -(1,236,918) 150,371
Initial recognition of NPBRTARER
convertible notes - - - 594 - 594
Redemption of convertible BEAMHRER
notes - - - (594) 594 -
Capital reduction R AR - - - - 61,690 61,690
Issue of shares BT 15,635 - - - - 15,635
Loss for the year FAEE - - - - (65392) (65,392)
Balance at —EEREF
31st March, 2006 ZRA=+t-HZ&# 481,286 13,878 907,760 -(1,240,026) 162,898
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32. OTHER RESERVES (Continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company represents:

(i) the difference between the consolidated shareholders’
funds of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Company, and the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued for the acquisition at the time
of a previous group reorganisation; and

(i) the cancellation of an amount of approximately
HK$48,000,000 from the share premium account of the
Company and the credit of an amount of approximately
HK$610,247,000 of the Company’'s share capital
cancelled in 2002.

(iii) the contribution of approximately HK$26,719,000 from
the placing of warrants in 2002 that were expired in
2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders at 31st March, 2005
and 31st March, 2006.

PR ETE Y
HE-—BEAFE=A=+-BLFHE
___________________________________________________________________

32. it (&)

KRB ZANBERLE:

(i) AXBFFKBHERRRNKEHR S
ZIEABRREC RPN REEAER
RRBEMBEITZARAROEEZ
ER

(i FHARABRDEEREEP LD
48,000,000 0 U KR _FEZE_F
AN A A IR AN 2 49610,247,0005
THERR R

(i) RZEE_FRER_ZZT=F5
WML RBREFBZBREY
26,719,0007% 7T

REARE-NN—FQEDE (KIERT)
ZAN/N TZ@)\%%—EE—Hﬁ’VE AT fid
HIETIER KRR BAERARRE
ERENN s ‘M’E.ﬂ N

\/IL’R?“HX B 12 X

NABEZEIREEBRAM D
RE&E /\E%ﬁﬂx$&ﬂx1}]/ﬁnf
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. WIEK B 2 A

During the year ended 31st March, 2005, the Group acquired
the entire issued share capital of Sun Concord Limited and
Deluxe Ray Inc., which held a 16% direct equity interest in
Elite King Consultants Limited and a 15.25% direct equity
interest Nice Achieve Development Limited, respectively, for
a total consideration of approximately HK$40,000,000. The

R-_ZERF=ZA=1+—HBLEFE £&
| LA 48 X {8 4940,000,0005% 7T W2 & Sun
Concord Limited &2 Deluxe Ray Inc.Z & &
ZIT R A - Bl 9 B # A Elite King
Consultants Limited 16% & # i% AN 28 2
Nice Achieve Development Limited

acquisition has been accounted for by the acquisition method

15.25% B ERAER - ZFWBEEREsR

of accounting. g 07 N
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EERE —EEREF
FTER FAT
Net asset acquired: Fir il B & = (A -
Investment securities BEHEEE - 40,000
Satisfied by: SRR
Cash ik - 40,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: Wb EE A IR & T RE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—BBAE —=Tng
FH% FR
Cash consideration paid and net outflow of W E AR FAHIRE
cash and cash equivalents in respect of RERBeRRSERE
the acquisition of subsidiaries 15 B m i F - (40,000)

The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31st March,
2005 did not have significant contribution to the turnover
and loss from operations of the Group for the year of
acquisition.

The fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired were
equal to their carrying amounts immediately before the
combination.
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 3. HEKRE AT
During the year ended 31st March, 2006, the Group disposed HE_ZZRF=ZA=T—HBLEFE XK
of its subsidiaries, Kingdom Wealthy Limited, New Plaza £ B8 % E W B2 R Kingdom Wealthy
International Limited and Sharpower Limited. The net assets Limited, New Plaza International Limited
at the date of disposals were as follows: K Sharpower Limited » IR E BBz EE

FEEHINAT

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2®AE —=ERF
FET FET
Net assets disposed of: EHFEE:
Property, plant and equipment Y- E R RE 527 -
Investment properties "EME 9,460 -
Other receivable JiE W B 4t AR 18 5 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 46 -
Bank borrowings RITIEE (2,511) -
7,527 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEK B A E EE (2,913) -
Consideration KB 4,614 -
Satisfied by: SRR
Cash R& 4,614 -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: PEEABRERAFE:
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Cash consideration ReRE 4,614 -
Bank balances and cash disposed of EHBETEH LB S (46) -
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEMBLATELERS R
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReSHEEERARE 4,568 -
The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 31st March, HEZZEZENF=-A=1+—HLEFER
2006 contributed loss of approximately HK$81,000 to the EHZHBARAAREBEEEEBTX
Group's loss from operations for the year. E 1B 47 /5 81,000/ 7T °
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35.

36.

37.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

There was no major non-cash transaction entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31st March, 2006.

The major non-cash transaction entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31st March, 2005 is as follows:

(@) The Company issued and allotted 1,080,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each upon the exercise of the
conversion rights by the holders of the convertible notes.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st March, 2006, the Company had no material
contingent liability. At 31st March, 2005, the Company had
given corporate guarantees to banks and a securities broker
in respect of credit facilities utilised by the subsidiaries to an
extent of approximately HK$7,650,000.

The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of financial
support given to subsidiaries which have capital deficiency to
allow them to continue as a going concern and to meet their
liabilities as and when they fall due.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group and the Company had no significant capital
commitment at the balance sheet dates.
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36.

37.
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BHE-_ZEZXF=ZA=+—HILEE K
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(a) ARBIRABBRERFTEATERL
A 1% 397 M B ¥ 1,080,0000% &
R EO0.01 T2 TmAk -

XREE

RZTEERNE=A=+—H KARLE
EARAREGE RN _ETRAF=A=+—
H ARBIHRMBARMAEERERR
TRk —EEFELTEERRERY R
7,650,000/ T e
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38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 38. KEMHENLTH

The Group as lessee
The Group made minimum lease payments of approximately
HK1,818,000 (2005: HK$3,030,000) under operating leases

in respect of office premises during the year.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for

REBEEREBAA

REBFRNERERSFTEDEI I 2K
EHAOEHSEBHNZLDAE1,818,000
Bt (ZZEZE R4 3,030,000 7T) ©

/\ i/«-/v
NEEHE

B AEBEARTARELERY

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AE AR R AR AR A 51 B4 fE i HR 4n
operating leases which fall due as follows: S
THE GROUP
REME
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2®AE —=ER%
FER FhR
Within one year —F R 752 1,610
In the second to fifth year inclusive WEERF (BEEEMF) 1,407 173
2,159 1,783
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KREHAOANREAEEREE TR FE
Group for certain of its office premises and staff quarters. MERBEBS ZEMNES -BL T
Leases are negotiated and fixed for an average term of two ERME=1F-
to three years.
The Company had no outstanding commitments under non- REEE R AR R ERETT 2N ATEUEH

cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date.

BT EHE-
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39. BANK AND OTHER FACILITIES

30. RTRHMEME

THE GROUP rEH
At the balance sheet date, the Group’s bank and other facilities REER AEEZRITEREMBENT
were secured by: P B IEEHE A
(a) The net book value of the Group’s pledged assets are as () AEEEEMEEZREFENT
follows:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEXREF —ETRHF
FERT FHET
Investment properties MEKRE - 13,750
Other financial assets at fair BRAFEFAERZ
value through profit or loss EmesmEE 82,576 -
Investment securities FHKE - 35,955
Bank deposit RITIF K - 5,041
82,576 54,746
(b) The entire issued share capital of a wholly-owned by —AE2EMHNBAREILE BITHRA

subsidiary was also pledged to Asean to secure the
Company’s borrowings of HK$23,643,000 (2005:
HK$23,643,000).

B EE AR R 5 E23,643,000%8
T (ZZZT R 23,643,000 7T) K
#HFAsean °

() The minority shareholder of Shanghai Hualong () RAFFZEWBRAR LBERERE
Construction Stock Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Hualong BRHBRAR ([ g EJ)&ﬁ
Construction”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the C B AR Z VB EREH EBESE

(d)

Company, and its affiliates had pledged certain properties
and given corporate guarantee to certain banks in respect
of credit facilities granted to Shanghai Hualong
Construction.

The minority shareholder (also a director) and his spouse
of Prosper City International Limited (“Prosper City”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, pledged
certain bank deposits of approximately of HK$7 million
(2005: HK$5 million) and issued personal guarantee to
an extent of HK$8 million (2005: HK$5 million) in respect
of other facilities granted to Prosper City.
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39.

40.

BANK AND OTHER FACILITIES (Continued)

THE COMPANY

At 31st March, 2005 the Company pledged HK$5,041,000 to
bank to secure banking facilities granted to Prosper City.
During the year ended 31st March, 2006, the entire amount
of pledged bank deposit was utilised to settle the bank
overdraft of Prosper City.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of an independent trustee.

Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions at 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. The contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the income statement represent
contributions payable to the fund by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years.

The employees in the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the
PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.
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41. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH 4. EBEEHEAT RS REE
RELATED PARTIES

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with ilﬁﬂ REBEATEHAEATETER
the following related parties, together with balances with RE UNERNEERREBEEELETEH
them as at the balance sheet date, details of which are as EX-F N
follows:
2006 2005
HK$ HK$
—EEARE —ETRF
BT T
Associates: [ Rl/NEIR
Balances due to the Group as REERRNEASE &5
at the balance sheet date 161 4,279
Key management compensation of REBFTEEBEABMIE:
the Group:
Salaries and other short-term FRHEEMESHES R
employee benefits 725 1,168
The balances are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed EEREER THANEREETENR
repayment terms. H o
Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant B bt 455 B8 & S O A N A A B 5 B iE
transactions with related parties during the year or significant AT ZEARRSGEAREAFEFHEA LR
balances with them at the end of the year. R EEAT KNiEH
42. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 42. FEBHRSEE
(@) On 6th June, 2006, the Company entered into an (@) RZEERFERNASNH AAFH
agreement with Asean to extend the repayment date of Aseand] Y & T K —F AR
a loan amounting to approximately HK$23,643,000 to 23,643,000 TER 2 EXBHZE
6th November, 2006. ZEERFE+—HKRA-
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42. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 2. FEHAREE (&)

(Continued)

(b) On 7th March, 2006, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the by RZZEEXNF=ZA+BH AR
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement al—fH2EMNE XA HEFit Time
with Fit Time Management Limited (“Vendor”) in relation Management Limited ([E75]) 7] 32
to the acquisition of a company, Jet Winner International ERbWE—RHAF B REBR
Investments Limited (“Target Company”), which has an 120,000,000 7T 2 B & # = ' Jet
indirect 25% interest in a joint venture company Winner International Investments
established in the People’s Republic of China, which in Limited ([ B 2R ® )FB KK F
turn owns a piece of land in the PRC at an aggregate FEARAKME s, —EE&ERF25%
consideration of HK$120,000,000. However, after the JEERR BERPEES T
Group completed its due diligence review on the Target AT AEBTXEHBZEAAF
Company, the Group was not satisfied with the ZEMEEE BT ZIEWE
completeness of the documents and information provided REIXHREHKRESEREE R
in relation to the acquisition. Accordingly, the wholly- BRI Z2ENBRARIREAR
owned subsidiary and the Vendor terminated the ZEERNFOAMARLRIERE
acquisition and executed a Deed of Termination on 4th NEIEZIBWE - A EEIBE 2B D
April, 2006. Details of the above were set out in the FANER —_ZTEENF=A=AKZ
announcement to the shareholders of the Company dated TEXFNA+HAQE AR R
3rd March, 2006 and 10th April, 2006 respectively. Mz e

() On 5th June, 2006, the Company granted 14,040,000 () RZEZXRFENARB ARAIKT
share options to consultants of the Group at the exercise FEFR0.278 LM A K B R HE &
price of HK0.27 per share. tH 14,040,00017 B A% 4 -

43. LITIGATION 43, F &R

On 4th July, 2005, the Company was notified by the Hong
Kong Companies Registry that the annual return of Gold
United International industries Limited (“Gold United”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, filed in May 2005
("May Annual Return”) contained information, including
members and directors of Gold United, which are incorrect
and significantly different from the original annual return that
was presented by the Group on 29th April, 2005.

On 13th July, 2005, the Company filed a Writ of Summons
against four persons (the “Defendants”) seeking, amongst
others, declarations by the court to effect what Winsky
Management Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, is the beneficial owner of 51% of the issued share
capital of Gold United. The Defendants were the people, which
purportedly filed the false information to the Hong Kong
Companies Registry and/or identified as members and directors
in the May Annual Return. Gold United is an investments
holding company, which has an 80% direct interest in 1 /|
HEX B BR ARG, which is engaged in the operation
of a highway in the PRC.

R-ZZRFLAMB -FERRGFEME
BRARRR] RNARERENE AP B
HEREXAR A (28R _FFA
FHAZRBFRZBAFHEHRR([AAB
FHRR]) BAEETTEEEN Eh e
REBSBBRRREZEZEN ZFEH
EAEBRN _TTRFNA_tTABM
ERREBFHRREEAER

RZZZRF+A+=H AR AMAMEE
AL ([HEAD) BHERSMK B (K
hEE)EREMREARA2ENE R F
Winsky Management Limited & & B B 2%
TRASI%ER L EmBEAANBEAR
BHEASEARIGMEZEREREN R
SIRA R BEFRBRREBRARRELE
FZANL - @BMAREERAR BEE
BMINEERZBREFR QRS0 %ER
ZAREFERELLEERRRER-

—zzxsa bsswBrarad 121 [



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬂ%iﬁé@ﬁﬁi{
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 HE_ZZF=-A=-1T—HILFE
S

43. LITIGATION (Continued) 3. &FFA (#)
As at 31st March, 2006, the legal action is still proceeding RZEERF=ZA=+—"B FEEERE
and there is no significant development. FEETH UEENER-
On 1st February, 2006, the Writ of Summons was amended RZZEZEXNF_A—B ZEASHKER
and was served on three of the Defendants in Hong Kong BIIWER_ZEZNFHAAZNAHAER
during May 2006 and June 2006. Since the original Writ of BEBXRZEP=ZEEA-BRREMS
Summons had been expired on 12th July, 2006, an application MERZZEZRFLATZAER &
was made to the court on 7th July, 2006 for a renewal for a ER T FLALtHRARRELHE
period of 12 months. The application is being processed by BEST-EA ZRRIEFEEEHARSE-
the court.
After taking into consideration the advice of the Group’s legal BEFEAEEEZZERZERE EER
counsel, the directors consider the Group has a 51% effective AAEERGHBEES I %EaEn TR
interest in Gold United and consider that the outcome of the BERERBF 2 ERBTEHRNEEBY
proceedings will not have material adverse financial effect to BRERTHZE-
the Group.
44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. TEMBRARFE
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March, RZEERNF=A=1+—H FARQAzx
2006 are as follows: EMBARFBOT:
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share Effective
Paid up capital/registered proportion
Place of share capital/ capital held by of issued
incorporation/ registered the Company#/ capital held
Name of subsidiary registration capital subsidiaries by the Group Principal activities
ARES
i N TEE
e #&1T e
By BEBRAR BAZM BITRAE
Fff 1§ 2 B & 7B = 1 it B =M ER ERMEEL B 340 FTEEK
% %
Active Ocean Investments  B.V.l. Us$1 100 100  Investment holding
Limited EBREZHS (EV "EER
All Grand Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Property investment
2EBRRAA BB 28 TT MEKRE
Admomentum Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Investment holding
BELEFHESESE BB 10,0007 7T "EER
BRAF]
Capital Shore Limited B.V.I. US$1 100 100 Investment holding
EEBEZHS 17T BEER
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. TEM BN BIFE (7)

(Continued)

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share Effective
Paid up capital/registered proportion
Place of share capital/ capital held by of issued
incorporation/ registered the Company*/ capital held
Name of subsidiary registration capital subsidiaries by the Group Principal activities
AR
i 18 2 & AEE
e BT FiRe
MR BRBRAE BA& xS BITRA
MEARERE & 4t B HfER EAEELL A ERLA  EBEK
% %
Deluxe Ray Inc. B.V.I. US$1 100 100  Investment holding
REBERHES 1€ 7T BREZER
Fairtop Limited B.V.I. US$1 100 100  Investment holding
REBERHES 1€ 7T REZER
Flow Success Company Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Property holding
Limited i 28T MERA
AR AR
Full Champion Financial B.V.L Uss$3 100% 100  Investment holding
Limited REBERHS EE BREER
Goldachieve Profits Limited B.V.I. Us$1 100% 100  Investment holding
REBERHS 127 BREER
Gold Method Consultants ~ B.V.I. Us$1 100% 100 Investment holding
Limited REBERHS 127 BREER
Gold United International Hong Kong HK$10,000 51 51  Investment holding
Industries Limited B 10,000 7T BREER
THBEEREEXAERAA
Greenham Development Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Property holding
Limited 5 28T MERET

REZRBR AR
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. T EM B A AFE (&)
(Continued)

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share Effective
Paid up capital/registered proportion
Place of share capital/ capital held by of issued
incorporation/ registered the Company#/ capital held
Name of subsidiary registration capital subsidiaries by the Group Principal activities
NS
HE A KEE
e RT ESa=)
E3i A BRBRAE BA& TS BITRA
MEQRERE il it B iR EAREE L BRLG  EEEH
% %
Honalary Company Limited B.V.I. Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
RERLES 17T REER
Huey Tai Holdings Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 100%* 100  Investment holding
ERERBRAQA BE 28T REER
New Team Limited B.V.I. Us$1 100 100  Investment holding
REBRLES 17T REER
Prosper City International Hong Kong HK$100 51 51  Trading of building
Limited BB 1007 7T materials and
BREBEERRA A provision of
renovation service
BEMHES R
KBRS M
Proud Star Enterprises B.V.I. Us$1 100 100  Investment holding
Limited RBRERHS 1€ 7T REZER
Shanghai Hualong PRC Us$11,080,000 51 51  Property development
Construction s 11,080,000 7T and sales
FEBERE MEZRNIEE
South Gater Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Property holding
e 2T MERE
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. T EM B A AFE (&)
(Continued)

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share Effective
Paid up capital/registered proportion
Place of share capital/ capital held by of issued
incorporation/ registered the Company#/ capital held
Name of subsidiary registration capital subsidiaries by the Group Principal activities
rAF
Bt B8 2 ) AEE
e T e
HEMRILS BEBRE BA M BIOBRAE
ol PN = fif 1 26 = it & A< EXREELLA BRLEG EEBER
% %
Sun Concord Limited B.V.I. US$1 100 100  Investment holding
REBRLHS 1€ 7T REER
Super Target Limited B.V.I. US$1 100% 100  Investment holding
REBRLHES 1€ 7T REER
View Century Limited B.V.I. US$1 100% 100  Investment holding
REBRLHES 1€ 7T REER
Weth Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Investment holding
BEERBRRAA B 28 TT BEER
Winsky Management Ltd B.V.I. US$1 100% 100  Investment holding
REBRLHES 1270 REER
MU R 8 22 i % & PRC RMB3,745,000 80 40.8  Operating of highway
BRI A a3 3,745,000 A & & N g
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at RAFEFEBRFREMER WBEQ
the end of the year or at any time during the year. A EAEMERES-
The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company LREEESRRYRNEERNFEFEER
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the BREAFZEIRAEB  EEFER
results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the net HBEEBHEZARRIMNBEAR -EER
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, ABHINEMMBARICERESRIIER
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive Ko

length.
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45. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 45. Lk BEF

As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements, WU TS R 5L 2B 1EE — 2P R 2
due to the adoption of HKFRS during the current year, the R E FRMI @R E &R & T 0 %@
accounting treatment and the presentation of certain items EPEHEERBEEAEBRERCIFELE
and balances in the financial statements have been revised to - LATFE T EskeEt - B/ T RIF AT
comply with the new requirements. Accordingly, certain prior EHER ETHRETIEDETLEoh
year adjustments have been made and certain comparative ETUBEFEENHEUNRFEARFE
amounts have been restated. In addition, certain comparative ZEMAN

amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
year’s presentation.
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